Town of Youngsville

Board of Commissioners
P. O. Box 190 / 134 US 1A South
Youngsville, NC 27596

(919) 925-3401 — Town Hall / (919) 925-3402 — Fax
CustomerService@TownofYoungsville.org

www.townofyoungsville.org

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

AUGUST 13, 2020
7:00PM

YOUNGSVILLE COMMUNITY HOUSE

115 E MAIN STREET
(Video and Teleconference are available)

Dial-In-Number: 623-600-3767
Conference Code: 203137

Tiny URL: https:/ftinyurl. com/boc-2020-08-13

1. CALL TO ORDER AND INVOCATION

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. SWEAR IN OF NEW YOUNGSVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT OFFICERS

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. ANNEXATION PETITION — FRANKLIN MCLEOD — 104 TARBORO ROAD
i. OPEN HEARING TO THE PUBLIC
it. COMMENTS FROM PUBLIC
iii. CONTINUE OR CLOSE HEARING

B. PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SECTION 8.210 (AMPLIFIED SOUND) OF THE
TOWN CODE
i. OPEN HEARING TO THE PUBLIC
ii. COMMENTS FROM PUBLIC
iii. CONTINUE OR CLOSE HEARING

5. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS
6. FINANCIAL REPORT

7. CONSENT AGENDA

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING — JULY 9, 2020

TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT

POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT

PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT

TAX RELEASE — BAYER HEALTHCARE LLC - CORRECT VALUE - $1,279.22

moQwe




Town of Youngsville

Board of Commissioners
P. O. Box 190 / 134 US 1A South
Youngsville, NC 27596
(919) 925-3401 — Town Hall / (919) 925-3402 — Fax

CustomerService@TownofYoungsville.org
www.townofyoungsville.org

ACTION REQUESTED: APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA AS SUBMITTED
8. OLD BUSINESS

A. CONSIDER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 8.210 (AMPLIFIED SOUND) OF THE
TOWN CODE

ACTION REQUESTED: RECEIVE AMENDMENT FOR CONSIDERATION

B. ANNEXATION ORDINANCE 2020-2 - FRANKLIN MCLEOD — 104 TARBORO
ROAD

ACTION REQUESTED: APPROVE ANNEXATION ORDINANCE 202(-2
9. NEW BUSINESS

A, REVIEW TOWN ATTORNEY’S OPINION ON DEBT ISSUANCE AND DRAFT
FINANCING AGREEMENT WITH UNION BANK

ACTION REQUESTED: RECEIVE AS INFORMATION

B. RESOLUTION APPROVING ISSUANCE OF DEBT FOR PUBLIC WORKS
FACILITY CONSTRUCTION AND TOWN HALL REFINANCE AND
RENOVATION

ACTION REQUESTED: APPROVE AS PROPOSED

C. CONSIDER APPLICATION OF BEN RUPERT FOR APPOINTMENT TO THE
YOUNGSVILLE ABC BOARD

ACTION REQUESTED: RECEIVE APPLICATION FOR CONSIDERATION

D. CONSIDER AUTHORIZING RELEASE OF REMAINING PORTION OF CASH
BOND AND ACCRUED INTEREST IN ESCROW TOTALING $78,630.14
REQUESTED BY HAMPTON DOWNS OF YOUNGSVILLE LLC FOR
SATISFACTORY COMPLETION OF PAVEMENT AND SIDEWALK
IMPROVEMENTS IN HAMPTON DOWNS OF YOUNGSVILLE

ACTION REQUESTED: AUTHORIZE RELEASE OF REMAINING PORTION
OF CASH BOND

E. CONSIDER A REQUEST BY PATTERSON WOODS LLC TO RELEASE SURETY
BOND No. 6670431 IN THE AMOUNT OF $35,000.00 FOR CAMILLE CIRCLE



Town of Youngsville

Board of Commissioners
P. O. Box 190 / 134 US 1A South
Youngsville, NC 27596

{919) 925-3401 — Town Hall / (919) 925-3402 — Fax

CustomerService@TownofYoungsville.org
www.townofyoungsville.org

CONSTRUCTION AT US1A AT THE INTERSECTION OF USIA IN PHASE 2 OF
PATTERSON WOODS

ACTION REQUESTED: AUTHORIZE RELEASE OF $35,006 FROM SURETY
BOND No. 6670431

F. CONSIDER AUTHORIZING STAFF TO ADVERTISE A PUBLIC HEARING FOR.
7:00PM ON SEPTEMBER 10, 2620 IN CONSIDERATION OF TEXT
AMENDMENTS TO THE YOUNGSVILLE DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TO
COMPLY WITH N.C.G.S. CHAPTER 160D LEGISLATION

ACTION REQUESTED: SET PUBLIC HEARING AS PROPOSED

10. REPORTS AND OTHER BUSINESS

i.
ii.
iil.
iv.
v.
vi.
vii.
viii.
ix.
X.

MAYOR

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
COMMISSIONERS

PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT
TOWN ATTORNEY

POLICE CHIEF

FIRE DEPARTMENT

PARKS & RECREATION

TOWN CLERK./ TAX COLLECTOR
MAINTENANCE

[1. CLOSED SESSION - NONE

12. ADJOURN

This is a public meeting and is subject fo North Carolina open meetings and public records
law. To preserve the public record and increase transparency, video and audio recordings
are performed at alf public meetings. Please note these recordings, the cleri(’s detailed
minutes of all meetings, and any documents reviewed during meetings are public domain
and may be disclosed to third parties.







AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE
TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-31 to
annex the area described below; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has by resolution directed the Town Clerk to
investigate the sufficiency of the petition; and

WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public
hearing on the question of this annexation was held at 7:00pm at Youngsville Community House
on August 13, 2020, after due notice by publication on July 30, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds that the petition meets the requirements
of G.S. 160A-31;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the
Town of Youngsville, North Carolina that:

Sectionl. By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-31, the following described
territory is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Youngsville as of August 31, 2020:

Legal Description for
“FRANKLIN MCLEOD”

BEGINNING AT AN EIP IN THE RIGHT OF WAY OF TARBORO ROAD AND THE SMITH BACON
TRACT; THENCE S 78°10'35" E A DISTANCE OF 387.99' TO AN EIP IN RIGHT OF WAY; LEAVING SAID
RIGHT OF WAY POINT THENCE S 02°49'16" E A DISTANCE OF 607.25' TO AN EIP; THENCE

N 84°3327" W A DISTANCE OF 19.60' TO AN EIP; THENCE N 37°54'17" W A DISTANCE OF 29.8%'

TO AN EIP; THENCE N 44°3(0'57" W A DISTANCE OF 64.47 TO A NIP; THENCE N 70°29'45" W A
DISTANCE OF 57.78' TO A NIP; THENCE N 67°16' 39" W A DISTANCE OF 54.84' TO AN EIP; THENCE

N 86°23'53" W A DISTANCE OF 106.30' TO AN EIP; THENCE N 72°50'19" W A DISTANCE OF 8271 TO A
BENT EIP; THENCE N 54°02'50" W A DISTANCE OF 77.27' TO AN EIP; THENCE N 34°19'28" W A
DISTANCE OF 56.88' TO A NIP; THENCE N 65°12'06" W A DISTANCE OF 56.76' TO AN EIP IN THE
CENTER CF CREEK; LEAVING SAID POINT IN THE CREEK THENCE N 02°49'14" W A DISTANCE OF
25.98' TO AN EIP;THENCE N 87°10'46" E A DISTANCE OF 130.61' TO AN EIP ON THE CORNER OF A
DRAIN FIELD EASEMENT; THENCE N 02°49'14" W A DISTANCE OF 395.00' TO AN EIP INT THE RIGHT
OF WAY OF TARBORO ROAD; WHICH IS THE POINT OF BEGINNING.




Section 2. Upon and after August 31, 2020, the above described territory and its
citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations in force in the
Town of Youngsville and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of
the Town of Youngsville. Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S.

160A-58.10.

Section 3. The Mayor of the Town of Youngsville shall cause to be recorded in the
office of the Register of Deeds of Franklin County, and in the office of the Secretary of State at
Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 above,
together with a duly certified copy of this ordinance. Such a map shall also be delivered to the
Franklin County Board of Elections, as required by G.S. 163-288.1.

Section 4. Notice of adoption of this ordinance shall be published once, following the
effective date of annexation, in a newspaper having general circulation in the Town of
Youngsville.

Adopted this 13" day of August 2020,

Fonzie A Flowers, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Emily Hurd, Town Clerk Michael Cohen, Town Attorney



Town of Youngsville
Memorandum

Board of Commissioners

: Emily Hurd, Town Clerk

Staff
8/10/2020
Proposed Amendment to Section 8.210 (Amplified Sound) of the Town Code

Consider the following amendment to Section 8.210 (Amplified Sound) of the town code
(additions underlined, deletions in strikethrough):

() It shall be unlawful to:

(1) Operate or allow the operation of any sound amplification equipment
so as to create sounds registering 60 db(A) or greater between the hours of
9:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.; on Sundays through Thursdays, and 9:00 a.m.
and 10:00 p.m. on Fridays and Saturdays; or 50 db(A) or greater between
9:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m.; on Sundays through Thursdays, and 10:00 p.m.
and 9:00 a.m. on Fridays and Saturdays; as measured anywhere within the
boundary line of the nearest residentially occupied property, except in
accordance with a permit obtained from the town. To determine if this
limit is being exceeded, sounds may be measured at or beyond any
property line of the premises covered by the permit.

(2) As to multifamily structures including town homes, apartments,
condominiums, or other residential structures or arrangements where
property lines cannot readily be determined, it shall be unlawful to operate
or allow the operation of any sound amplification equipment so as to
create sounds registering 60 db(A) or greater between 9:00 a.m. and 9:00
p.m.; on Sundays through Thursdays, and 9:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on
Fridays and Saturdays; or 50 db(A) or greater between the hours of 9:00
p.m. and 9:00 a.m.; on Sundays through Thursdays, and 10:00 p.m. and
9:00 a.m. on Fridays and Saturdays; as measured from any point within
the interior of another residential unit in the same complex or within the
boundary line of the nearest residentially occupied property, except in
accordance with a permit obtained from the town.

(3) As to places of public entertainment, including, but not limited to,
restaurants, taverns and bars, coffeehouses and private clubs, to operate or
allow the operation of any sound amplification equipment so as to create
sounds registering more than 65 dB(A) between 9:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.;
on Sundays through Thursdays, and 9:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on Fridays
and Saturdays; or 50 dB(A) between 9:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m.; on Sundays
through Thursdays, and 10:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. on Fridays and

Page 1 of 2



Town of Youngsville memorandum dated 8/10/2020
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendment to Section 8.210 (Amplified Sound) of the Town Code

Saturdays; as measured anywhere within the boundary line of the nearest
residentially occupied property, hotel, motel, hospital, or rest home, except
in accordance with a permit obtained from the town.

(5) Operate or allow the operation for personal use of any sound
amplification equipment on the public right-of-way, including streets or
sidewalks, or in the public parks so as to produce sounds registering more
than 60 db(A) at any point 50 feet or more from any electromechanical
speaker emitting sound between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m; on
Sundays through Thursdays, and 9:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on Fridays and

Saturdays; or 50 db(A) 50 feet or more from any electromechanical
speaker between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m.; on Sundays through
Thursdays, and 10:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. on Fridays and Saturdays; except

in regards to section 14-71 (6).

Decibel Level Table to be used as reference for enforcement of the above section

Use Time
Max dB(A)
General Sunday— 9 am—9 60
Thursday pan. 50
Menday- % p.m.—9 60
Sunday a.n. 30
Friday— 9am—10
Saturday p.am,
10pm—9
a.m.
Public Sunday— 9am—9 65
entertainment Thursday p.m. 50
Menday - 9p.m—9 65
Sunday a.m. 50
Friday— 9am.-—10
Saturday p.m.
10p.m—9
am,

Page 2 of 2



Town of Youngsville
Memorandum

From: Phillip Cordeiro, Town Administrator
To: Town Board of Commissioners
Copy to: Emily Hurd, Town Clerk
J. G. Whitley, Chief of Police
Date:  July 13, 2020
Subject: Amplified sound ordinance resident survey results
Ref: (a) Town Code Section 8.210 — Amplified Sound

As discussed, please find below a simplified and sanitized version of the summary of responses
from the town’s amplified sound ordinance resident survey conducted from June 12, 2020
through July 7, 2020. Out-of-town responses have been removed from the dataset.

Amplified Sound Survey Reponse Summary
June 12, 2020 until July 7, 2020

Oppose =
21 Responses,
or 29% of total

Support =

51 Responses,
or 71% of total

List of households submitting responses in support™f

109 Anderson Park Dr, Youngsville, NC 210 E Franklin St, Youngsville, NC
110 Blue Heron Dr, Youngsville, NC 221 E Franklin St, Youngsville, NC
305 Blue Heron Dr, Youngsville, NC 117 E Main St, Youngsville, NC

105 Bonterra Dr, Youngsville, NC 118 E Main St, Youngsville, NC
103 Corano Ln , Youngsville, NC 119 E Main St, Youngsville, NC
205 Corano Ln , Youngsville, NC 121 E Main St, Youngsville, NC
115 E Franklin St, Youngsville, NC 122 E Main St, Youngsville, NC
116 E Franklin St, Youngsville, NC 217 E Main St, Youngsville, NC
203 E Franklin St, Youngsville, NC 302 E Main St, Youngsville, NC

Page 1of 3



Town of Youngsville memorandum dated 7/13/2020
AMPLIFIED SOUND ORDINANCE RESIDENT SURVEY RESULTS

118 E Pine St, Youngsville, NC 312 Lauref Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC
207 E Winston St, Youngsville, NC 313 Laure] Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC
213 E Winston St, Youngsville, NC 315 Laurel Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC

400 Forest Glen Dr, Youngsville, NC 104 Laurel Oaks Drive, Youngsville, NC
404 Forest Glen Dr, Youngsville, NC 508 N College St, Youngsville, NC
405 Forest Glen Dr, Youngsville, NC 2035 Nassau St . Youngsville, NC
409 Hilisboro St , Youngsville, NC 5240 NC Hwy 96, Youngsville, NC
515 Holden Forest Dr, Youngsville, NC 200 Petal Grove Ct, Youngsville, NC
105 Laurel Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC 202 Petal Grove Ct, Youngsville, NC
107 Laurel Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC 519 Richlands Cliff Dr, Youngsville, NC
109 Laurel Oaks Dr. Youngsville, NC 602 Richlands CLiff Dr, Youngsville, NC
203 Laurel Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC 203 S Nassau St, Youngsville, NC
302 Laurel Oaks Dr. Youngsville, NC 123 SE Railroad St, Youngsville, NC
305 Laurel Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC 104 W Franklin St. Youngsville, NC
307 Laurel Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC 35 W Main St, Youngsville, NC
309 Laurel Qaks Dr, Youngsville, NC 108 W Winston St, Youngsville, NC

310 Laure] Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC

List of households submitting responses in opposition*f

101 Laurel Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC 123 E Main St. Youngsville, NC
101 Porter Hill Dr, Youngsville, NC 123 E Franklin St, Youngsville, NC
102 Chipping Sparrow Ct, Youngsville, NC 201 SE Railroad St, Youngsville, NC
109 N Nassau St. Youngsville, NC 216 S Nassau St, Youngsville, NC
110 Great Arbor Ct, Youngsville, NC 224 E Main St, Youngsville, NC
115 E Main St, Youngsville, NC 304 Laurel Oaks Dr, Youngsville, NC
116 E Main St, Youngsville, NC " 401 Holden Forest Dr, Youngsville, NC
117 E Winston, , Youngsville, NC 403 Forest Glen Dr, Youngsviile, NC
118 Railroad St, , Youngsville. NC 409 Chub Center Dr, Youngsville, NC
119 South Cross St, Youngsville, NC 429 Cross St ., Youngsville, NC

120 E Main St, Youngsville, NC

*Note: Electronic responses coming from the same household were combined into a single
response to enhance the quality of data.

Note: Mail-in responses (via door hanger) that did not include a physical address were assumed
to come from the downtown area throughout which town staff distributed door hangers. For the
sake of expediency, those responses were assigned an address between 120 and 130 E Main
Street. Thus, while no business and or residence may correspond with that address, responses
with such an address may be confidently assumed to have come from the downtown area.

Page 2 of 3



€40 ¢ afeq

Hoddng u] pjoyasnoH =
uonisoddQ ul pjoyasnoH = X
‘puasI

Xa
X e
s
g oL
s _om mwmmpw o St |fo
IIX.I . ..& \._.‘H\,_\.,,
e 1.
e °®
e
.,\..\
N o , \\.x

0202 ‘L AInf ysnouy3 0zZoZ ‘2T aunf wouy 7
Alewwing asuodsay AaAIng punos payijdwy

SLINS3Y AIAYNS INIAISTY IDONVNIGQHO ANNOS A3IIdINY
0Z0Z/ET/L PF3IEP WNPURIOWSLW 3[IASSUNOA 10 UMO)






Town of Youngsville
Finance Report

To:  Youngsville Board of Commissioners

From: Kari Patton-Motluck, Interim Finance Officer
Date: August 9, 2020

Re:  Finance Report— July 2020

During the month of July, there were:

81

. checks written totaling §181,633.84

¢ 28 day sheets recorded totaling $222,220.90

» Qur Current Debt Jssuance:
o Vehicle Loans — total balance $429,105.83
o Sireet Loan — total balance 3178,875.11
o Town Hall Loan — total balance  $268,812.48

e Town’s Anticipated Debt Issuance:

o The loan application for the new Public Works Facility and Town Hall
Renovation has been submitted to the LGC for consideration and is expected to be
on their September agenda.

o Anticipated loan amount is $2,436,768 million (which includes paying off the
remaining town hall loan) with a repayment term of 20-years at a fixed rate of
2.5% through Union Bank.

¢ Capital Improvements Plan

o Public Works Facility and Town Hall Renovations — Site work and design work
continues. Construction bids are expected to start soon.

o Community House kitchen remodel — PO Issned to DS Handyman and
Remodeling for $12,300 — the cost of the stove and refrigerator is TBD.

o Cemetery Fence — PO Issued to Seegars for $4,974 and we also received a $500
donation from a community citizen towards the cost.

o Wayfinding Signs — PO Issued to Daniel Notch Signs totaling $13,608.94

o Luddy Park has two capital projects — a PO issued to AO Services for $5,250 for
stairs and First Light Technologies was issued a PO for $9,693.00 for basketball
court lights.

o Police Department has received a PO for $5,799.00 to Elan City for two radar
speed signs.

Page 1of 1







Town of Youngsville
Post Office Box 190, Youngsville, North Carolina 27596
Phone: 919.925.3401 [ Fax: 919.925.3402

August 10, 2020

To: Commissioners
From: Kari Patton-Motluck
Re: Financial Statements for month ended July 31, 2020.

Condensed Financial statements for the month ended July 31, 2020 are attached. The financial
statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting which essentially
means that all unpaid bills that have been received as of today’s date are included in the
expenditures line items.

The financial statements are arranged in the following sequence:

General Fund (#100) Balance sheet
General Fund Budget vs Actual

Powell Bill Fund (#210) Balance Sheet
Powell Bill Budget vs Actual

Capital Projects Ordinance - Pedestrian Plan Grant (#305) Balance sheot
CPO — Pedestrian Plan Grant Budget vs Actual

Debt Set Off (#405) Balance Sheet
Debt Set Off Budget vs Actual

Fixed Assets & Accruals (#500) Balance Sheet

Please feel frec to contact me if you have any questions.

Kefr~

Kari Patton-Motluck

Interim Finance Officer

Office: 919.925.3393
kpattonmotlick@townofyoungsvilie.org

“The Gateway to Franklin County”

Page 1 of 1




GL Balance Sheet
Period Ending 7/31/2020

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE

8/10/2020 6:57 PM Page 1/5
100 GENERAL FUND S

Asset

100 GENERAL FUND

100-110-100 Operating Cash .~
100-110-105 P&R Registration Deposit Account
100-110-107 DOJ Checking

100-110-110 Petty Cash

100-110-200 Money Market/Savings Account
100-110-310 General Accounts Receivable
100-110-320 Property Tax Receivable
100-110-330 LG Sales Tax Receivable
100-110-340 Sales Tax Refund Receivable
100-110-351 Due from ABC Store

100-110-360 Garbage & Recycling Receivable
100-110-361 Garbage & Rec Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
100-110-390 Due from Funds

100-110-392 Due from Debt Set Off
100-110-393 Due From NCCMT

100-110-394 Due from Capital Projects
100-110-400 Cther Current Assets

100-110-410 Prepaid Expenses

100-110-610 Hampton Downs MM Account
100-110-620 LMB MM Account

Asset Total

$361,187.01
$14,211.61
$444.50
$100.00

$1,606,281.94

$26,730.97
$93,409.00
$90,190.44
$18,562.49
-$29,678.81
$23,093:12
-$11,608.72
$6,013.02
$4,259.85
$259,340.15
$49,000.00
$1,565.23
$12,804.36
$78,630.41
$136,315.17

$2,740,851.74

Liability

100-210-100 Accounts Payable

100-210-200 Employee Related Accounts Payable
100-210-223 Retirement Contribiition Payable
100-210-225 Insurance Deductions Payable
100-210-227 State Continuation Payable
100-210-228 Other Deductions Payable
100-210-310 Community House Deposits
100-210-311 Field Rental Deposits

100-210-320 Deferred Revenue

100-210-321 Property Tax Prepayments
100-210-322 Garbage & Recycling Prepayments
100-210-610 Hampton Downs Performance Bond
100-210-620 LMB Performance Bond

$38,630.01
$17,624.07
-$402.65
$3,213.50
-$1,031.30
-$276.40
$1,600.00
$260.00
$19,918.06
-$795.46
$1,812.72
$78,630.41
$136,315.17



GL Balance Sheet
Period Ending 7/31/2020

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE
8/10/2020 6:57 PM

Page 2/5

100-210-910 Reserve for Taxes Rece;vabEe
1 00 21 D~911 Reserve for PF’ Taxes e
100-299-500 Fund Balance

Cuirent Fund Balance Adjustment AT

PfY Fund Balance Adjus’fment
100 GENERAL FUI\ED ‘

$93 409.00
$498 73

$1 520,105, 59'
77,9089
$909,247.26
8274080174




Budget vs Actual (Summary)

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE

8/10/2020 7:.01:51 PM Page 1 Of3
Period Ending 7/31/2020
100 GENERAL FUND
Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent
Revenues
4,209,198 0.00 187,827.41  (4,021,370.58) 4%
Revenues Totals: 4,209,198 0.00 187,827.41  (4,021,370.58) 4%
Expenses
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS / 54,665 18,333.00 2,793.35 33,538.81 39%
GOVERNING BODY
ADMINISTATICN 574,528 39,810.97 45,208.30 489,508.38 15%
PUBLIC FACILITIES 1,469,001 197,422.62 12,312.80 1,259,265.66 14%
PUBLIC SAFETY 1,621,938 147,329.88 149,847.92 1,224,760.44 20%
PUBLIC WORKS 386,088 155,472.99 29,984.55 200,630.49 48%
PARKS & RECREATION 202,978 10,629,54 25,587.46 166,760.83 18%
Expenses Totals: 4,209,198 568,999.00 265,734.38 3,374,464.61 20%
100 GENERAL FUND Totals: (77,906.97)



GL Balance Sheet
Period Ending 7/31/2020

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE
8M0/2020 6:57 PM Page 3/5

210 ‘POWERBILL .~

Asset
210:110-106 Operating Gash . _ .
210-110-210 Savings Account $45,265.27
210 POWER BIL s

i87,022.58

AssetTotal

210 'POWERBILL

Liabifity

$6,644.95
-$34,494.09

P/Y Fund Balance Adjustment
sl sy sonss




Budget vs Actual (Summary)

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE

8/10/2020 7:01:51 PM Page 2 0Of3
Period Ending 7/31/2020
210 POWER BILL
Description . Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent
Revenues
40,000 0.00 0.00 {40,000.00)
Revenues Totals: 40,000 0.00 0.00 (40,000.00)
Expenses
PUBLIC WORKS 40,000 340.00 0.00 39,660.00 1%
Expenses Totals: 40,000 340.00 0.00 39,660.00
210 POWER BiLL Totals: 0.00



GL Balance Sheet
Period Ending 7/31/2020

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE
8/10/2020 6:58 PM

305 CAPITAL PROJECTS-PEDPLANGRANT =~

Page 1/1

Asset
306+110-100 Operating Cash.
305-110-220 Savings Account

BOSCAPlTAL PRO JECTS PEDPLANGRANT N AssetTotal TR P

$3,635.55
gi05,814189

Liability
305-210-850 Du

Current Fund Balance Adjustment

PROJECT NGRANT

$55,013.02
$50,801.87




Budget vs Actual

8/10/2020 7:30:29 PM Page 1 Of3

Period Ending 7/31/2020
305 CAPITAL PROJECTS - PED PLAN GRANT

Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance  Percent
Revenues

305-319-000 Intergovernmental - ¢ (.00 0.00 0.00
Restricted

305-319-070 Ped Plan Grant Income 1,193,500 0.00 216,867.04 (976,632.96)  18%
305-370-000 Iinvestment Income o 0.00 0.00 0.00
305-370-010 Interest Income 0 0.00 7946 . 79.46
305-395-000 Transfers from Funds 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
305-395-305 GF Fund Appropriation” . @ 454,.876 7 0 0.00° 15487555 0,067 100%

Revenues Totals: 1,348,376 0.00 371,822.02 {976,553.50) 28%



8/10/2020 7:30:29 PM

Budget vs Actual

Page 2 Of 3

Period Ending 7/31/2020

305 CAPITAL PROJECTS - PED PLAN GRANT

Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent
Expenses
305-500-000 Pedestrian Plan Project 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
Expenses
305-500-200 Project Oyersight/Eng Fees -+ 166,322 .. ' = £0.00.~ 170, 69415 - (4,372:10) - 103%.
305-500-310 Miscellaneous Expense 222,396 0.00 2,574.00 219,822.00 1%
305500350 Construction Expenses . "' 950,857. 0007 144,787.00 " ¢ 81487047 45%..
305-500-700 Other Cost 0 0.00 2, 965 00 (2 965 00) '
305-500-799 Contingency - G S 0,000 SRB0 T 0,00 T
PUBLIC FACILITIES Totals 1,348,376 0.00 321,02015 1, 027, 35537 24%
Expenses Totals: 1,348,376 0.00 321,020.15  1,027,355.37  24%




Budget vs Actuai

8/10/2020 7:30:29 PM Page 3 0Of3

Period Ending 7/31/2020

305 CAPITAL PROJECTS - Totals: 50,801.87
PED PLAN GRANT



Gl. Balance Sheet
Period Ending 7/31/2020

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE
8/10/2020 6:57 PM Page 4/5

Asset

405-110-108 Operaifg ash. L
405-110-250 Investment in Term Portfolio $276,749.51
405 . SETOFF e AssetTotaI | $278,40475 y

8,655,204

Liability
405-210-850 Due
405-299-500 Fund Balance

el
$10,392.67

‘Llability Total .




Budget vs Actual (Summary)

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE

8/10/2020 7:01:51 PM Page 3 OF3
Period Ending 7/31/2020
405 DEBT SET OFF
Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance  Percent
Revenues
0.00 0.00 (2.00)
Revenues Totals: 2 0.00 0.00 {2.00)
Expenses
2 0.00 0.00 2.00
Expenses Totals: 2 0.00 0.00 2.00
405 DEBT SET OFF Totals: 0.00



GL Balance Sheet
Period Ending 7/31/2020

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE
8/10/2020 6:57 PM

500 FIXED ASSETS & ACCRUALS ~

Page 5/5

Asset
500-110-710 Buildings & Property

500- 110-740 Vehlcles
500-110-750 EqUIpment
:500 110-791 Accu'

lated Deprecnat:on e

500 FIXEDASSETS&AGCRUALS | . AssetTol

$1,587,572.00
©'$544,429.00
$179,587.00

: -$853,_1 97.00
$1 458, 391; 00:_'

Liability
500-210-211 Accrued Vacation Pay

500«21 0500 Ins’taE[mF‘Jnt Puféhas'éSfCépifai Lease Obligations -
500-210-710 Net Pension Liability - .GERS
500:210-720 Net Pension Liability { LEOSSA

. 500-299-500 Fund Balance

500 ‘FIXED ASSETS &ACCRUALS = Liabliy Total-

$39,092.84

- $567,894.00
$161,328.00
$112,153.00
$577,923.16

| $1,458,301.00







Town of Youngsville
Board of Commissioners
P. O. Box 190 / 134 US 1A South

Youngsville, NC 27596
{919) 925-3401 — Town Hall / (919) 925-3402 — Fax
CustomerService@TownofYoungsville.org

www.townofyounegsville.org

MINUTES
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

JULY 9,2020
7:00PM -

REGULAR MEETING
YOUNGSVILLE COMMUNITY HOUSE

Mayor Fonzie Flowers called the Board Meeting of the Town of Youngsville Board of
Commissioners to order at 7:00pm.. Commissioner Hedlund gave invocation. In
attendance were Commissioners Cat Redd, Terry: Hedlund, Larry Wiggins, and Joseph
Johnson (teleconfc_;;_eﬁt;é)ﬁ f'*.;(__30mmissioné;.-_Scoijt__._B_téiﬁé?;':was not in attendance. Others in
attendance were Town Administrator Phillip Cordeiro, Town Clerk / Tax Collector Emily
Hurd, Planning and:Zoning Administrator- Erin Klinger, Police Chief J.W. Whitley,
Finance Officer Kari Patton-Motluck, Attorney Daniel Hartzog, Parks and Recreation
Director- Andrew. Smith and Public Works Supervisor Randy Smith.

MOTION:  TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS SUBMITTED

The motlon was made bj}__ffﬁpmmiégipn_er Wigging and was seconded by Commissioner
Hedlund. The motion passed unanimously.

The next item onthe agenda was citizens’ comments. Due to the social distancing
restriction for the COVID=19 Virus, citizens attended via web/teleconference. As Scott
Turner had not yet called in, he was allowed time later in the meeting.

The next item on the agenda was the Financial Report. Patton-Motluck stated there was
nothing significant to report.

The next item on the agenda was the approval of the Consent Agenda. The Consent
Agenda consisted of:

o Minutes from the Regular Board Meeting — June 11, 2020

o Tax Collector’s Report

o Police Department Report

o Planning and Zoning Report




MOTION: TO APPROVYE THE CONSENT AGENDA

The motion was made by Commissioner Hedlund and was seconded by Commissioner
Redd. The motion passed unanimously.

The next item on the agenda was Old Business. The first item under Old Business was to
continue the discussion on the request to update the Noise Ordinance by the Victorian
Youngsville. Mayor Flowers thanked Cordeiro for the information presented, including
the map. Cordeiro explained the information included in the map.

Commissioner Hedlund stated he was good with the information Cordeiro collected and
Commissioner Redd was pleased with how many responses they received. Commissioner
Wiggins expressed concerns about the number of responses from people that did not live
in town. Cordeiro stated he could refine the map if needed and separate the town votes
from those in the county. He noted there was an overwhelming support of extending hours
on weekends. Including votes from county' residents, it was twelve to one in favor of
extending the hours, inside of town limits was two to one in favor, Cordeiro stated he
would provide more detail via emall :

Mayor Flowers stated it was good to see how peopie outside of town would weigh in,
especially concerning how they would visit the town. Comm1ssmner Wiggins noted they
didn’t have to slecp here - s

Commissioner Hedlu.nd clarlﬁed the current ordmance had a 9pn1 cutoff and Cordeiro
stated that was correct. Commissioner ngglns stated the Town was currently not
enforcing it. Chief Whitley explained the officers were given a directive this week, for
either a complaint or observation, to take a decibel reading to get base lines from residences
so they.can notify the business owners of any violations. This information will be
compared with incident reports so they can get a good idea of the number of violations /
complaints. Officers will utilize the decibel meter in order to get real data. When asked,
Chief Whitley stated they started this week.

Cordeiro noted that unless a citizen made a formal complaint, there was nothing the Town
could do about it. He stated there was a lot they can do moving forward to make sure
Officers have this on their checklist for observation. Cordeiro stated they will also solicit
feedback from the community, so that when violations are occurring, they report it.
Commissioner Wiggins expressed concerns about afterhours calls to 911. He stated
citizens were being told they didn’t take those types of calls. Chief Whitley stated this was
the first he was hearing of this problem and noted he would investigate.

Commissioner Hedlund stated the data supported extending the amplified sound until
10pm on Fridays and Saturdays. Support for 11pm was also substantial, Cordeiro stated
he would break the information down further to eliminate those outside of town limits.

Mayor Flowers noted they should set a Public Hearing before any changes were made.
Cordeiro stated they could hold a Public Hearing to encourage feedback but would need

2



one for the changes, once they have been proposed. Mayor Flowers noted there was
already a lot of feedback. Commissioner Redd wanted to clarify the Board would have to
continue discussing the changes and be decisive on the proposed changes, then have the
Public Hearing after that or could they have a Public Hearing for more input, then at the
following meeting they could make the changes. Cordeiro explained the Public Hearing
would require letting the citizens know what changes were proposed. If the Board wished
to move forward with a Public Hearing next month, they could direct him to draft the
proposed changes. Commissioner Redd worried about the two-month timeframe. Cordeiro
noted that if the Public Hearing has been satisfied, the Board can adopt the proposed
changes during the Board Meeting unless they wanted to change the proposed amendments.

If changes were made, then another Public Hearing would be required. Attorney Hartzog
noted adopting the proposed changes the same day Would tequire a higher percentage of
votes, Commissioner Wiggins inquired about hostlng events during the pandemic and
Cordeiro explained several vendors that are stakeholders in this change are exempt from
the restrictions of gatherings, such as weddings: "Att(')rney Hartzog siated he didn’t think a
change like the one proposed would require-a Public Hearing. However, if it is a
controversial subject, Public Hearings are encouraged. Cordeiro asked the he investigate
and get back with him. Cordeiro agreed the Public Hearing may not be necessary but were
encouraged for subject matters such as this. Maym Flowers stated it was good to allow
people to have the opportunity to sound off and expre s-their concerns.

Commissioner Hedlund asked If: ;_';t_he : 'Piib_h_o Hearmg;-;-__-would have to be held by
teleconference and Cordeiro stated it would, based on current mandates. This may change
after July 24", Cordeiro stated he has not recelved negative feedback over the virtual
meetings but noted engaging in person is: dlfferent than over the phone. Commissioner
Redd stated she would like to have a Public Hearlng next month. Cordeiro stated he would

draft the language for:] Opm on’ weekends "l}"f}j_;

MOTION DIRECT TOWN ADMINISTRATOR TO DRAFT PROPOSED

' AMENDMENT: TO NOISE: ORDINANCE ALLOWING TO 10PM
ON WEEKENDS . AND SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING FOR
AUGUST: 2020

The motio'r:l-:-w_a_s made by‘{g_CQmmissiener Redd and was seconded by Commissioner
Hedlund. The motion passed with three ayes and one nay from Commissioner Wiggins.

Scott Turner was permitted to speak for his scheduled Citizens’ Comments. Mr. Turner
thanked the Board for allowing him to speak. His concern was the Noise Ordinance
regarding construction noises. The Noise Ordinance allowed for construction on weekdays
from 7am to 8pm and on weekends from 8am to 6pm. Mr. Turner felt this was too much,
especially with people now working from home and students taking classes at home. He
felt this was hard on the community, especially on weckends. Mr. Turner requested the
Board revisit the Noise Ordinance regarding construction considering the pandemic.

Mayor Flowers thanked Mr. Turner for his time. Cordeiro clarified Mr. Turner took issue
with the time frames for construction noise as the construction was bothering him and his
family. Mr. Turner’s proposed modifications were 7am to Spm on weekdays and 9am to

3




5pm on Saturdays. Commissioner Redd inquired if this would include decks and Cordeiro
stated yes. Commissioner Redd clarified these changes would require a similar process as
the request by the Victorian Youngsville and Cordeiro stated that was correct. Attorney
Hartzog explained, other than zoning, most ordinance changes do not require a Public
Hearing. However, most Boards hold Public Hearings to get feedback before making
changes to the ordinances.

Concerns were expressed about limiting one person’s rights for another. Commissioner
Hedlund remembered when they had updated the Noise Ordinance, updating the allowable
hours for construction. As it has been some time since the changes, it might be time to
revisit this. Mayor Flowers noted during the summer, the heat was almost unbearable, so
he understood having an earlier start time. Commissioner Hedlund wondered if they
should change the hours to seasonal. R

It was noted Mr. Turner lived in Patterson Woods. Commissioner Wiggins stated he has
seen construction companies start as early as 6:30am. Cordeiro noted people are perturbed
but we never get formal complaints that allow enforcement procedures. Commissioner
Wiggins stated the construction doesn’t bother most people unless it gets loud.

Mayor Flowers asked if the Board wanted to act or think on it and discuss it at their next
Board Meeting. Commissioner Hedlund stated he wanted more time to think on it. He
also wanted to wait to discuss the situation further when everyone was in attendance.
Cordeiro stated he would reach out to people in the deveiopme_nt community to see if Mr.
Turner’s proposed changes would adversely affect their business. Mayor Flowers noted
that builders were contracted to build these hormes within a specified amount of time, noting
that weather could also be a factor. He agreed the construction shouldn’t start earlier than
the allotted time frame but there wasn’t a lot the Town could do if the violations weren’t
reported. Commissioner Redd stated she was not interested in making changes at this time.
The Board decuded to discuss this further next month,

The next item on the agenda was New Busmess. The first item under New Business was
the 2019 Tax Collector’s Settlement Report. Hurd stated the Settlement Report was a
yearly summary of tax collections for FYE 2020,

The first Repbi‘t is the Preliminary Settlement Report. This includes a list of persons still
owing both real and personal property tax for 2019.

The second Report is the “Settlement for Current Taxes for FY 2019/2020” that includes
all charges (billing, interest, penalties, etc.) and credits (payments, releases, past due
taxes, etc.) to the Tax Collector.

The third Report is the “Settlement for Delinquent Taxes for Tax Years 1998 —2018”.
This also includes charges and credits to the Tax Collector for all the delinquent accounts
from previous tax years. Included in the credits on this Report is the principal amount of
taxes determined to be insolvent and allowed as credits by the Board. There is an
attached list that contains delinquent personal property taxes that have been due for over
five years and are owed by deceased taxpayers, businesses that are no longer in business,

4



or taxpayers that no longer own the personal property that was taxed. The taxes are not
liens upon real estate. There is a Resolution approving the Settlement with the Tax
Collector for Insolvents that will need to be adopted as well.

Hurd noted that just because a tax is listed on the Insolvent list does not mean that she
cannot collect it if the opportunity arises. If she happens to find someone on this list and
can contact them to collect the money, she will. Hurd noted this happened with Debt Setoff
earlier this year.

Hurd stated the total 2019 Taxes placed in her hands were $1,536,059.49. Credits include
payments totaling $1,526,840.76, releases totaling $604.50, outstanding 2019 real property
taxes totaling 8,055.47 and outstanding 2019 personal property totaling $558.76.

Hurd stated prior year’s delinquent taxes mciuded $105 895 19 placed in her hands.
Credits include payments totaling $82,812.50, releases totaling $215 69, outstanding real
and personal property taxes in the amount of $21,759.84 and insolvent taxes totaling
$1,107.16. Hurd explained there was a list of insolvents, including. the year and reason
they are considered uncollectable. i : i

Hurd stated there was a Resolution to approve the Settlement with the Tax Collector for
insolvents. She explained the Order of Collection was needed for her to bill the 2020 taxes.
Hurd stated that she was WOI‘kng on bala.ncmg a prehmmary tax scroll but has not yet
received the billing tax 301011 - : -

MOTION: ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING TI—IE SETTLEMENT WITH
'I‘I-IE TAX COLLECTOR F R'INSOLVENTS

The motion was made by Comxmssmner Hedlund and was seconded by Commissioner
Redd, Comlmssmner Redd noted Hurd was domg an amazing job. The motion passed
unannnously : '

The s’et’:’pggi item underNew Busmesswas the Order of Collection.
MOTION: = ;APPROVE”*EHE ORDER OF COLLECTION

The motion was made by Comm1ss1oner Redd and was seconded by Commissioner
Hedlund. The motion: passed unanimously.

The third item under New Business was a presentation of Annexation Petition 2020-2 from
Franklin Mcleod for 104 Tarboro Road. Hurd stated the property was five acres located
beside the Dollar General. It will be considered a satellite annexation. As they wish to
develop the property, Franklin McLeod had to petition for voluntary annexation based on
current policy.

The fourth item under New Business was a Resolution directing the Town Clerk to
investigate Annexation Petition 2020-2 from Franklin McLeod for 104 Tarboro Road.




MOTION: APPROVE RESOLUTION DIRECTING TOWN CLERK TO
INVESTIGATE ANNEXATION PETITION 2020-2 — FRANKLIN
MCLEOD - 104 TARBORO ROAD

The motion was made by Commissioner Hedlund and was seconded by Commissioner
Wiggins. The motion passed unanimously. Commissioner Wiggins inquired about the
property and Klinger explained it would be a self-storage facility. She explained the Board
had approved their high-density watershed permit a few months ago. When asked, Klinger
stated this was a new facility and not an expansion of the facility across the street.

The fifth item under New Business was the presentation of the Certificate of Sufficiency
for Annexation Petition 2020-2 from Franklin McLeod for 104 Tarboro Road. Hurd stated
she received the annexation petition in a timely manner and was able to move forward with
her investigation. As everything was in order, she was able to present the Certificate of
Sufficiency.,

The sixth item under New Business was a Resolution fixing the date of the Public Hearing
on the question of annexation pursuant to G.S. 160A-31 for Annexation Petition 2020-2
from Franklin McLeod for 104 Tarboro Road. Hu1d Stated the Public Hearmg would be
held during the August 13% Board Meetmg :

MOTION: APPROVE THE' R_ESOL_UTION FIXING THE DATE OF THE
PUBLIC HEARING ON THE. QUESTION OF ANNEXATION -
ANNEXATION PETITION 2020-2 FRANKLIN MCLEOD - 104
TARBORO ROAD o i

The motion was made by Commissioner W1gg1ns and was seconded by Commissioner
Redd. The motlon passed unammously

The next item on the agenda- was Reports and Other Business. Mayor Flowers stated he
was ready for the pandemic to be over so everything will get back to normal. He stated the
new Keys to the City look great. =

Cordeiro stated everything was going well with the new Public Works facility. He noted
the design 1s almost complete and has been turned over to the engineer for construction
plans to be drawn. The Town has received environmental approval from the Army Corp
of Engineers, and they are still waiting on approval from the State. Cordeiro expected the
steel to arrive in late September or early October, They should be able to break ground
around the same time. He stated work should be completed by late January or early
February.

Cordeiro stated he was still in negotiations with NC DOT for the Main Street
Improvementis Project (MSIP) for an agreement to reimburse the Town within our set
timeframe. This will help the Town proceed as quickly as possible.

Cordeiro summarized Staff was preparing to amend the amplified sounds for 10pm and the
Public Hearing would be scheduled for next month.



Cordeiro stated the Town added a new Fleet Mechanic, Dyron Kearny, to staff. Mr.
Kearney has already saved the Town money in repairs and felt he would be a good member
ofthe Town team. Cordeiro stated the Police Department has been recruiting as well. They
will select for their Administrative Specialist soon out of a high-quality pool of applicants.
The Police Officer position also has high-quality candidates. Cordeiro stated they still
needed to complete some background information. He noted the competitive
compensation, as well as dedicating necessary resources, has helped in the recruiting
process. Cordeiro stated these efforts have been appreciated.

Commissioner Hedlund noted there was a pothole across from the one he previously
mentioned. He noted NC DOT had repaired the one at the stoplight. Cordeiro stated he
continues to work with NC DOT. He noted the new fiscal year had just begun, which may
net better results. Commissioner Hedlund stated boﬂ_i’:potholo__s_were very deep.

Commissioner Hedlund asked for updates.on the new buﬂdmg on. SW Railroad Street,
which is supposed to be an antique store. Kllnger stated they were working on getting their
final inspections. Commissioner Redd noted one of the owners had been on site earlier in
the day. Klinger explained there were some problems with the stormwater dramage as the
contractor had installed it on the fiei hbormg property She stated they were in the process
of getting that corrected. i

Commissioner Wiggins noted the oWgers had come before the Board of Adjustment for
permission to conduct their business out:of their home on Main Street for approximately
cighteen months,.-He: stated it has been four years and. the materials are still stacked up
around their house Cormmsswner Wiggins stated they are running a cleaner at least one
of two morning each’ week. Cordeiro asked for clarification on the locations. Mayor
Flowers asked Cordelro and Hurd 1o mvestlgate Commissioner Wiggins stated they had

bulldmg w1th materials.

Commlssmhér Redd stated Chief Whitley was doing a great job. Everything seems to be
going good here n Youngsvﬂle She was happy the Town was able to hire a Fleet Manager.
Commissioner Redd stated. she has two new neighbors, noting the number of new people
moving to Youngsvﬂie

Commissioner Hedlund thanked Mayor Flowers and Jim Moss for their help on the road
cleanup a couple of weeks ago. They totaled twenty-eight bags during an extremely hot
day. Commissioner Redd thanked everyone for their help in keeping the roads of
Youngsville clean. Commissioner Hedlund stated he may need more help soon.

Commissioner Hedlund noted East Woods of Patterson was having the remaining portion
of sidewalks installed, which will run the length of Blue Heron Drive.




Klinger read the Planning Report into the record. During June, there were 14 permit
applications and 14 permits were issued; six for new homes, four for accessory structures,
two for new signs, one for a business upfit and one for a sewer line replacement. There
were two site plan submittals; one for a new business (Coolwick Warehouse) at 80
Weathers Street and one for an expansion for Wake Electric at 228 Park Avenue, Three
Certificates of Compliance were issued.

Over 50 new signs were identified via the expenditure of eight staff hours during focused
sign sweeps. Over 40 illegal signs were immediately removed by town staff during those
sweeps. Two notice of violations were mailed for illegal signs. Both were mailed to LGI
Homes for off-premises signage; one at US #1 and Holden Road and the other just west of
US 1A on Holden Road. The first notice has a correction date of July 13" and the second
has a correction date of July 24", Penalties will be assessed fer any illegal signage placed
by this company moving forward. o "

A notice of violation was issued for pallets left in the right of way at 321 N Nassau Street,
This violation has been remedied. Two notices of violation were issued for trash and debris
with a deadline of July 10" to have the Vlolation removed. A notice of vzolatlon was also
issued for a junk vehicle with a remedxatlon date of July IO“‘

Klinger noted there will be text amendments coming soon regarding the Youngsville
Development Ordinance (YDO). She explalned Rick l“lowe had mentioned these during
the YDO process. :

Chief Whitley read the Pohee Department Report mto the record The Youngsville Police
Department recorded 422 calls for service during the month of June compared to 277 calls
during the same month last year. Of those 287 calls for service, 19 reports were taken, and
117 citations were written. - Chief Whitley: noted there was not a rise in crime in
Youngsvﬂle these numbers Just reflect a ehange in the way they must report to the Federal
Govemment

During June 2020 the Youngsvﬂle Police Department investigated 12 motor vehicle
collisions as compared to 13 in the same month last year. There were two hit and runs
reported. There were two minor injuries reported this month.

Our agency’s traffic safety initiative continued through June with the following
enforcement actions taken between June 25 and July 1, 2020.

Speeding>IsSmph fio
Speeding <15mph L3 S
Stop Sign Violations 5
Turn Sign Vlolatlons iy
No Operators L1cense 3
1
1
1

Dr1vmg While License Revoked
Window Tint
Expired Registration

Total Enforcement Actions 3




There has been a notable decrease in observed violations on our side streets during this
campaign, which resulted in officers expanding their efforts to include our primary points
of ingress and egress through town.

A geographic breakdown of posted speed limit violations included:
« Holden Road — Officers issued 10 speeding citations and 18 written warnings for

speeding. The highest observed speed was 58 MPH.

e NC 96 Highway/S Nassau Street (coming into town) — Officers issued 5 speeding
citations and 18 written warnings. The highest observed speed was 53 MPH.

» Youngsville Blvd — Officers issued 3 speeding o1ta‘[10ns and 18 written warnings.
The highest observed speed was 55 MPH - .

Our participation in community events has been mgmﬁcantly 1mpacted by the Governor’s
Executive Orders regardlng social chstanclng and public gatherings due to Covid-19;
however, our agency’s vision to build community trust and partnerships through
professional policing has remained constant. Officers have continued to-actively visit
local businesses to promote commumty policing- as a means ‘of building partnershlps and

crime prevention.

We are currently scheduled to hold our first National Night Out event on October 4,

2020. National Night Out is a prograni that partners. business ¢ owners, citizens and law
enforcement to enhances those relatlonshlps and promote community interaction. The
evening will prov1de an opportunity for ope ommun1cat10n between all involved as
well as several fun and educatlonal events.

Ofﬁcers completed Sltuanonai '_Awareness/ Sub_] ect Control training at Wake technical
w1th thhly realistic scenano;based trammg Whlch focused on the proper application of
use of force and de- escalatlon taot1cs to mitigate the use of force.

Mayor F loWe_rs noted the ohaj_nge in th'e".town limits sign by Holden Creek Preserve had
decreased the speed further out. e inquired if there would be period of leniency and
Chief Whitley stated the Officers were issuing warning tickets with the intention to
advise when they will stari issuing citations.

Commissioner Hedlund expressed concerns about the change in speed on US 1A South
heading towards Wake Forest. The change in speed is not properly posted.
Commissioner Wiggins clarified the area of concern and Cordeiro stated he would
contact NC DOT.

Chief Whitley stated they did stop a man that was going 85MPH heading out of town.
This man was arrested later, including other offenses. Mayor Flowers stated the people
did speed a lot around here and it was dangerous. Commissioner Wiggins noted N
Nassau Street was another high-speed area. He felt that most of them were coming from




the business in that area. Commissioners Wiggins and Hedlund stated they have noticed
a decrease in speeders due to the enforcement action of the Police Department.

A Smith stated Kickball Season started this week and noted the first day was a success.
He stated they partnered with Chargrill for concessions and it went very well. Isreal
Meadows has been contracted to take over regular concessions.

A Smith stated he was working on rescheduling pickle ball classes. He hoped to have
these started in August. He stated Fall Baseball registration will start the week of July
20" They plan on domg adult baseball for the first time. When asked, A Smith stated
there was no baseball going at this time. Commissioner Hedlund noted the hills at the
Luddy Park were hard to maintain and felt it would make sense to hire a company that
has better equipment due to the angle of the hill. R Smlth stated it was not easy to
maintain, Cordeiro stated he would get with R Smith regarding necessary equipment as
he agreed we did not want staff doing anything unsafe. :

Mayor Flowers inquired about the basketba_l_li éourts. A Smith stated the new lights were
included in the budget and he was working on getting the gates installed..

R Smith stated their new hire, Dyron Kearney, had 25 years’ expetience as a mechanic,
with numerous certifications. Kearney also has his commercial driver’s license (CDL)
for heavy equipment. He has been able to help address urgent needs for the Public
Works facility and will be mstrumental in developmg that building. Mr. Kearney was
able to save the Town money today on mower repairs that would have cost approximately
$350. Heisa Veiy good local speaker and has a lot of potenﬂal

R Smith stated the new uniforms will be a hghter grey, button-up shirt. They do have t-
shirts coming in for warm_er weather. R Smith stated they will be easily recognizable.

The next item on the_ agenda was Closed S.essi_on. Mayor Flowers stated there was no need
for the Board to go into Closed Session.

The meeting adjourned at 8:08pm upon a motion made by Commissioner Wiggins,
seconded by Commissioner Hedlund, and approved unanimously.

10



Town of Youngsville
Memorandum

To: Board of Commissioners
From: Emily Hurd, Tax Collector
Date: 8/5/2020

Re:  Monthly Tax Collection Report
Encl:  Collections Rate Report

Please review and approve the below report of the July
2020 releases, adjustments, refunds, and tax collection report.

e Total release amount for July 2020 - $0.00
e  Total adjustment amount for July 2020 - $0.00
e  Total refund (overages) amount for July 2020 - $0.00

As of July 31, we have collected 99.45% of 2019 property
taxes. On July 20*, we mailed 2020 Tax Bills in the amount of
$1,576,743.28. We collected 3.48% by the end of July.

2019 Taxes 2020 Taxes

/

m Colletions m Net Due u Colletions = Net Due

We received payments from Franklin County Tax Office for
June vehicle taxes in the amount of $57,564.06.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any
questions or need more detailed information.

Page 1 of 1



8/3/2020 8:23:12 AM

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE

Collections Rate Report

Page: 1 of 1

Tax Year Charges Coltections Net Collections Percentage
1998 $48.49 $48.49 $0.00 100.00%
1999 $43.60 $43.60 $0.00 100.00%
2000 $42.20 $42.20 $0.00 100.00%
2001 $40.79 $40.79 $0.00 100.00%
2002 $39.38 $39.28 $0.00 100.00%
2003 $37.98 $37.98 $0.00 100.00%
2004 $257.08 $35.18 $221.91 13.68%
2005 $430.96 $195.85 $235.11 45.45%
2006 $466.83 $232.02 $234.81 49.70%
2007 $426.64 $77.49 $348.15 18.16%
2008 $485.40 $41.07 $444.33 8.46%
2009 $1,054.01 $40.08 $1,013.93 3.80%
2010 $1,115.44 $38.25 $1,678.19 3.52%
2011 $1,133.40 $335.88 $797.52 28.64%
2012 $1,088.10 $95.86 $992.24 8.81%
2013 $1,158.28 $298.30 $859.08 25.75%
2014 $2,160.57 $1,040.62 $1,119.05 48.16%
2015 $4,651.09 $2,891.81 $1,759.28 62.18%
2016 $28,368.62 $25,164.22 $3,204.40 88.70%
2017 $30,046.54 $25,400.90 $4,645.64 84.54%
2018 $460,812.85 $455,173.03 $5,630.82 98.78%
2019 $1,636,121.47 $1,627,645.26 $8,476.21 99.45%
2020 $1,676,743.28 $54,607.38 $1,521,835.90 3.48%

Grand Totals: $3,646,773.01 $2,093,866.64 $1,652,608.37 57.42%



V YOUNGSVILLE §
{  POLICE

Youngsville Police Department
Post Office Box 190, Youngsville, North Carolina 27596
Phone: 919.925.3401 | Fax: 919.925.3403

MONTHILY REPORT
JULY 2020

CALLS FOR SERVICK

The Youngsville Police Department recorded 511 calls for service during the month of July
compared to 285 calls during the same month last year. Officers responded to one critical
incident during this reporting period. On July 12, 2020 officers investigated a domestic dispute
on Wolfpack Lane. Shortly after leaving the scene, the officers received a 911 call of “shots fired”
to the same address, which was tragically the result of a murder and suicide.

MOTOR VEHICLE COLLISIONS

The Youngsville Police Department investigated 8 motor vehicle collisions compared to 6 in the
same month last year. The collisions resulted in minor property damage with no injuries
reported.

PATROL OPERATIONS

Officers continued their proactive enforcement efforts on our secondary streets and major
points of ingress and egress along NC Highway 96, U.S. Route 1, and Youngsville Boulevard. A
recent extension of the town wide speed limit of 35 miles per hour (MPH) on Holden Road along
with the addition of new traffic control at some of our neighborhood intersections resulted in
officers issuing several written warnings. In addition to the in-person notifications given by
officers, we posted a Youngsville Police Department Facebook statement to inform our citizens
and those traveling through town of these changes.

This month’s patrol operations resulted in 81 written warnings and 163 citations issued with 219
charges total. Speeding and regulatory violations continue to account for most of the citations
issued; however, these violations are primarily on our major thoroughfares as moving violations
on secondary streets decreased significantly following the recent traffic safety campaign. While
speeding violations have decreased on our secondary streets, there has been a substantial
increase in traffic interdiction on our major thoroughfares as officers shift their patrol focus.



YOUNGSVILLE
POLICE

Youngsville Police Department
Post Office Box 190, Youngsville, North Carolina 27596
Phone: 919.925.3401 | Fax: 919.925.3403

Violations of note during this reporting period included officers issuing three citations on

Winston Street ranging from 19 to 24 MPH over the posted speed and three citations on Holden
Road ranging from 27 to 40 MPH over the posted speed.

July 2020 Traffic Violations

Bl Charges by Category

Other Infraction/Regulatory Violation | b |

Stop Sign Violation [ 1
Unsafe Movement [] 1
Inspection Violation [ 3
Expired Registration o]

Driving License Revoked [] 1

No Operator's License [_12.

Speeding | T

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

The department recently purchased two portable traffic monitoring devices which should arrive
in August. The devices will measure traffic volume, prevalence of speeding violations, and peak
travel times which will increase the efficiency of our traffic operations and improve community
safety. The devices can collect data passively or display motorists’ speed in real time, along with
a digital message that may be used to caution drivers of the posted speed and associated fines.

COMMUNITY POLICING

We canceled many of our community events because of Covid-19 and the associated social
distancing constraints of the Governor’s Executive Orders. Assistant Chief Kimball is working with
National Night Out program coordinators to plan our department’s inaugural event, which is
scheduled for October 6, 2020.



 YOUNGSVILLE \

POLICE

Youngsville Police Department
Post Office Box 190, Youngsville, North Carolina 27596
Phone: 919.925.3401 | Fax: 919.925.3403

ADMINISTRATIVE, TRAINING AND OTHER ACTIVITIES

Officer Jason Steinbrunner successfully completed field training on July 16, 2020. Officer
Steinbrunner is our first recruit to take part in the department’s comprehensive three-phase
field training program. A component of the program is a neighborhood portfolio project which
requires the recruit to research a community related issue and develop a practical solution to
address citizens’ concerns. Officer Steinbrunner chose Laurel Oaks subdivision based on traffic-
related issues in the neighborhood. Officer Steinbrunner will present his neighborhood project at
the Youngsville Community House on August 12, 2020 at 5:00 PM.

Officer Brittany Strother took her Oath of Office on July 16, 2020. Officer Strother has five years
of law enforcement experience with the Henderson Police Department, where she served as a
field training officer. Ms. Strother has a B.A. in Business Administration from Campbell
University. Officer Strother begins field training on August 10, 2020.

Brandon Lemons was the top candidate in our agency’s Sergeant assessment center. Mr. Lemons
has seventeen years of law enforcement experience with the Durham County Sheriff’s
Department, Butner Public Safety, NCDMV, and North Carolina Central University. Mr. Lemons
has served as an accreditation officer and watch commander as part of the NCCU Police
Department’s command staff. He has served with the US Army, Army Reserve and NC National
Guard since 1997 and holds the rank of Major, Logistical Officer. Mr. Lemons has a B.A. in
Exercise and Sports Science from UNC Greensboro and a M.A. in Human Services and Executive
Leadership from Liberty University. He has an expected start date of August 24, 2020.

Ashlie Pippin was the top candidate in our agency’s Administrative Specialist process. Ms. Pippin
has six years of experience with NCSU Police Department where she served as an Emergency
Communications Training Officer. Ms. Pippin has an A.L.A. from Mercyhurst College and a B.A. in
Criminal Justice from Park Point University. Her start date is on August 10, 2020.






Town of Youngsville
Planning Staff Report

Youngsville Board of Commissioners

Erin Klinger, Planning and Zoning Administrator
August 10, 2020

Planning Staff Report — July 2020

During the month of July, there were:

11 permit applications submitted and issued; 4 for new homes, 2 for fences, 2 for signs, 1
for an accessory building, 1 for a home occupation, and 1 to add a covered walkway at a
church.

3 certificates of compliance (COCs) were issued.

Over 10 illegal signs were immediately removed by town staff during focused sign
sweeps.

Four notices of violation (NOVs) were mailed for illegal signs. Two were for off-premise
signs located at the intersection of Holden Road and US-1. These signs have since been
removed. The other two were for feather signs at Majestic Marble and Greater Grace
Christian Church. Both signs have since been removed.

Page 1of 1






Bill Release Report Page 1 Of 1

Bayer Héa;t'hoare_'LLé':_j'.. min
ase $1279,22 to correct value -
19020 0 e

:“New Bil| Balanc

Bill Date Customer Name Due Date Revenue Bill Balance Release Amount

Bayer Healthcare LLC Merchant Capital $8,992,90 $1,279.22

Grand Totals: $8992.99 $i279.22

Signature;




grg”ggxcgousnty Tax Office IMPORTANT - PLEASE AFan
Lr:)ulisburg NG 27549 F "‘]I"lk]l]'l o, DATZEWMQ vl a C? {/ e
Fmam(_OUNty 20 // AT
SR following  mon

AR st Bggion Cooann

A Rearicl Taznale Regon Convnniey FAILURE TO f E { ) ( {j
collection proc r { ] @ -
wages, and st l 7 J

‘ advarlisemanl;
BAYER HEALTHCARE LLC éM&/ L e o\ ”’q ﬁ,g :) 0o
) ) .

s T S ST

INSTALLMENTS ' ]

C/O DUCHARME MCMILILEN - s::u‘:iﬁ;m;‘lﬁlwﬁ )
& ASSOCIATES Wl Institution,  mal (..‘ a ;
. dale. 4 s
PO BOX 80615 L PHROPERTY solL j/ / s
INDIANAPOLIS IN 46280 ' forward this ta - {‘,1 £ e
PERSONAL PRC X/ . e

be received  wilh

ACCOUNT “NUMBER " - BILL NUMBE! BILLING ™ DATE™

14794 2043421 P66995 07/16/2020
REAL VALUE: $0 LOCATION: N/A
FERSONAL PROPERTY VALUE: §1,177,676 AGREOR LOT: Nik
DEFERREDVALUE: 50 Corrected Value
EXEMPTION: $0
NET TAXABLE VALUE: $1,177 676
RETURN CHECK CHARGE: 10% of the amount of the check or $25.00 whichever D RIPTIO 0 AR AR RA AMO D
is yreater will be charged for any check returned for insufficient funds or non-
existence of anaccount. Tax receipls are null and void if paymenis [s made with a FRANKLIN COUNTY TAX 0.80a0 11,052.46
check that falls fo cfear the bank.
gy v, o YOUNGSVELE FIRE TAX 0.0800 1,235.68
|visa; e v
ONLINE: hitpsiicepaymeniservice.com/FrankinTax/
8Y PHONE: 8182772242
Cards also accepled at counter In office. CTAL TA 12,288.14
CC Payment Service charges a non-rfundable fee for processing payments. The fee
ENTS/CREDITS - .
js 2.25%, $2.25 miimum. You will need your iax year, tax account number and PAYMENTSICREDIT 1.747.94
HilE number in order fo make a payment by phone. :
IF PAID BY AUG 31, PAY THIS AMOUNT 10,487.50
L . - A0,540.20
Visit us atwww.franklincountync.us/services/tax

Bill Number:

2043421 PLEASE RETURN THIS PORTION AX PAYMENT

PARCEL I: P66S9S 2020 PROPERTY ¥AX NOTICE

A B DA [} DA B OTA AMO »

14794 O7MBI2020 08/01/2020 0170512021 IF PAID EY 08/31/2020 ] !

10,487.50 : 6,540,
AMOUNT PAID
BAYER HEALTHCARE LLC MAKE CHECK OR MONEY ORDER PAYABLE & REMIT
C/O DUCHARME MCMILLEN & ASSOCIATES T0; (Include the account # on your
P O BOX BOB15 payment) Franklin Counly Tax Office
P.0. BOX 503

INDIANAPOLIS N 46280 Louishurg NC 27549

000202020020434217000104875000010487500



HARTZOG LAW GRQUP Wl Zoé'j DAN M. HARTZOG, IR.

19203 nl. Harrison Avenue LAW Altorney al law
Suite 200 DIRECT DIAL/FAX: @1¢-480-.24350
' GROUP !

Cary, NC 27513 dhartzogjr@bartzoglawgroup.com

hartzoglawgroup.com

July 30, 2020

Department of State Treasurer
Local Government Commission
3200 Atlantic Avenue

Raleigh, North Carolina 27604

Re:  Town of Youngsville, Financing of Public Works Facility Construction and Town
Hall Refinance and Renovation ($2,436,768) Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. 160A-20

Gentlemen:

We are counsel for the Town of Youngsville, North Carolina, and as such, are
familiar with its organization and operation. We are familiar with the official action on
the part of its Board of Commissioners in connection with the financing by Town of
Youngsville under N.C. Gen. Stat. 160A-20 of the Town of Youngsville's Public Works
Facility construction and Town Hall renovation project, including the refinancing of
existing debt incurred for the purchase of the Town Hall building and property which is
now part of this project.

In connection with this opinion letter, we have examined:
A. Drafls of the financing documents;
B. Resolutions of the Board of Commissioners;

C. Article V of the North Carolina Constitution and the appropriate provisions of
Chapters 159 and 160A of the General Statutes; and

D. Such other documents as we deemed relevant or necessary in rendering this
opinion. '

Based upon the examination described above, we are of the opinion:

(1) That the Town of Youngsville has the power and authority to enter into the
transaction to finance the project under the provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. 160A-

20;




(2) That the appropriate documents have been and/or will be duly authorized by all
necessary action on the part of the Board of Commissioners and when duly
execuled and delivered, will be valid and binding obligations of the Town of
Youngsville in accordance with the terms of the documents except that the
enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws affecting
creditors' rights generally, as such laws would apply in the event of bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization or liquidation of, or other similar occurrence with
respect to the Town or in the event of any moratorium, temporary injunction or
similar occurrence affecting the Town;

(3) That the propdsed undertaking by Town of Youngsville is authorized by laws and
does constitute a public purpose under the Constitution of the State of North
Carolina;

(4) That all necessary and appropriate actions by the Board have been and/or will be
taken including a public hearing, if required, and that such public hearing as
conducted, met/will meet fundamental requirements of the statutes;

(5) That the Notice for a Public Hearing is, or will be, timely and sufficient to
identify the matter (contract) to be considered; and

(6) That the Town of Youngsville has followed and/or will follow applicable bid law
requirements in full compliance with applicable public bid statutes.

We are members of the Bar of the State of North Carolina and we do not purport

to express any opimon except as to the laws of the State of North Carolina.

cCl

Sincerely,

. M

Dan Hartzog Jr.
Michael B. Cohen

Phillip Cordeiro, Town Administrator
Kari Patton-Motluck, Finance Director



LOAN NUMBER LOAN NAME ACCT. NUMBER NOTE DATE INITIALS

1511336 TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE TO019440 10/01/20 SWH
NOTE AMOUNT INDEX (w/Margin) RATE MATURITY DATE LOAN PURPOSE
$2,436,768.00 Mot Applicable 2.500% 10/01/41 Commercial

Creditor Use Only

PROMISSORY NOTE

(Commercial - Draw)

DATE AND PARTIES. The date of this Promissory Note {(Note) is Octcber 1, 2020. The parties and their addresses are:

LENDER:
UNION BANK
978 US 1T HWY
Youngsville, NC 27596
Telephone: (919) 554-0824

BORROWER:
TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE
PO BOX 190
YOUNGSVILLE, NG 27596-0190

1. DEFINITIONS. As used in this Note, the terms have the following meanings:
A. Pronouns. The pronouns ", "me," and "my” refer to each Borrower signing this Note and each other person or legat entity {including guarantors,
endorsers, and sureties} who agrees to pay this Note, "You" and "Your" refer to the Lender, any participants or syndicators, successors and assigns, or any
person or company that acquires an interest in the Loan.
B. Note. Note refers to this document, and any extensions, renewals, modifications and substitutions of this Note,
C. Loan. Lean refers to this transaction generally, including obligations and duties arising from the terms of all documents prepared or submitted for this
transaction such as applications, security agreements, disclosures or notes, and this Note.
D. Loan Documents. Loan Documents refer to all the documents executed as a part of or in connection with the Loan.
E. Property. Property is any property, real, personal or intangible, that secures my performance of the cbligations of this Loan.
F. Percent, Rates and rate change limitations are expressed as annualized percentages.
G. Dotlar Amounts, Al dollar amounts will be payable in lawful money of the United States of America.

2. PROMISE TO PAY. For value received, | promise to pay you of your order, at your address, or at such other location as you may designate, amounts advanced
from time to time under the terms of this Note up to the maximurm total principal balance of $2,436,768.00 (Principal) plus interest from the date of disbursement,
an the unpaid outstanding Principai balance until this Note matures or this obligation is accelerated.

AlE advances made will be made subject to the terms of a separate construction foan agreement and all other terms and conditions of the Loan,

3. INTEREST. Interest will accrue on the unpaid Principal balance of this Note at the rate of 2.500 percent (Interest Rate).
A. Interest After Default. If you declare a default under the terms of the Loan, including for faifure to pay in full at maturity, you may increase the Interest
Rate payable on the cutstanding Principal balance of this Note. In such event, interest will accrue at the variable rate of the Wall Street Journal US Prime Rate
(Default index} plus 5.00% and wilt change from time to time as the Default Index changes.
B, Maximurm Interest Amount, Any amount assessed or collected as interest under the terms of this Note will be limited to the maximum lawful amount of
interest allowed by applicable law. Amounts collected in excess of the maximum lawful amount will be applied first to the unpaid Principal balance. Any
remainder will be refunded to me.
C. Statutory Autharity. The amount assessed or collected on this Note is authorized by the North Carolina usury laws under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 24-1.1.

D, Accrual. Interest accrues using an Actual/360 days counting method.

4. ADDITIONAL CHARGES. As additional consideration, | agree to pay, or have paid, these additional fees and charges.
A. Nonrefundable Fees and Charges. The following fees are eamed when collected and will not be refunded if | prepay this Note before the scheduled maturity

date.
Bank Counsel Fees. A(n) Bank Counsel Fees fee of $4,000.00 payable from separate funds on or before teday's date.

Flood Certification. A(n) Flood Certification fee of $20.00 payable from separate funds on or before today's date.
Appraisal. Aln) Appraisal fee of $5,000.00 payable from separate funds on or before today's date.

5. REMEDIAL CHARGES. In addition to interest or other finance charges, | agree that | will pay these additional fees based on my method and pattern of payment.
Additional remedial charges may be described elsewhere in this Note.
A. Late Charge. If a payment is more than 15 days late, [ will be charged 4,060 percent of the Amount of Payment. | will pay this tate charge promptly but
only once for each late payment.
6. PAYMENT. | will make 12 payment(s) of Interest beginning November 1, 2020 and on the st day of each month thereafter. | will make 40 payment(s) of
Principal and Interest of the lesser of $78,047.64, or accrued interest and so much of the Note Amount as may be advanced, beginning Aprit 1, 2022 and on the
1st day in each 6th month thereafter.

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE
North Carolina Promissory Note Initials
NC/4XXJHATCHCO000000002299068N Wolters Kluwer Financial Services ©1896, 2020 Bankers Systems™ Page 1

A

3




Payments will be rounded to the nearest $.01, With the final payment | ajso agree to pay any additional fees or charges owing and the amount of any advances
you have made to others on my behalf, Payments scheduled to be paid on the 29th, 30th or 31st day of a month that contains ro such day wiil, instead, be made
oh the last day of such month.

Interest only payments will be applied first to any charges | owe other than late charges, then to accrued, but unpaid interest, then to late charges. Principal only
payments will be applied first to the amount of the scheduled Principal payment, then to any late charges.

Payments of Principal and interest will be applied first to escrow that is due, then to interest that is due, then to principal that is due, then to late charges that are
due, and finally to any charges that | owe other than principal and interest. If you and | agree to a different application of payments, we will describe our
agreement on this Note. You may change how payments are applied in your sole discretion without rotice to me. The actual amount of my final payment will
depend on my payment record.

7. PREPAYMENT. |If | prepay in full or if | prepay in part, t will pay a prepayment penalty of 1% of the current principai balance prepaid during the first 60 months
after the date of this Note. However, the Loan may be prepaid, in full ar in part, without a prepayment penalty, if | request, in writing, that the prepayment penalty
be waived and, thereafter, a full or partial prepayment of principal is made (i) with funds generated from my cash flow, cash reserves, or other investments, {ji)
with the personal funds of any guarantor of the Loan, or (jii) with proceeds from a bona fide sale of any of the Property to an uarelated third party, Funds derived
directly or indirectly from proceeds of any loan to me or any guarantor {regardless of the identity of the lender) will not qualify to avoid application of the
prepayment penalty. By way of example, but not by way of limitation, the term “unrefated third party” does not inctude (i) me or any guarantor of the Loan, (i)
any business entity controfled by, under the control of, or under commor: control with me or any guarantar of the Loan, or {fii) any business entity in which f or any
guarantor of the Loan has or is expected to acquire an ownership interest. | will be responsible for establishing the source of funds used to prepay the Loan to
your rgasonable satisfaction and, if those funds are derived from the sale of any of the Property, establishing o your reasonahble satisfaction that the sale is a bona
fide sale to an unrelated third party. in the application of this provision, you wilt act in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

8, LOAN PURPOSE. The purpose of this Loan is te finance the construction of a new public works facility, refinance an outstanding loan on town halt and fund
renovations to town hall,

9. ADDITIONAL TERMS. Borrower represents that it has contributed cash or unencumbered readity marketable assets or has paid development expense out of
pocket in an amount equal to at least 15% of the appraised "as completed” value of the praject (“Initial Capital™). The appraised “as completed” value shall be
determined by an appraisal prepared for the Bank in accordance with the loan commitment. Through the life of the interim construction foan, Borrower agrees that
it will continuously raintain the Initial Capital and retain such Initial Capital until this interim construction loan is converted to permanent financing, the praject is
sold, or this facility s paid in full.

10. SECURITY, The Lean is secured by separate security insttumenits prepared tagether with this Note as follows:

Document Name Parties to Document Date of Security Document
Deed OFf Trust - South College Street, Youngsville, NC TOWN OF YOUNGSWVILLE Qctober 1, 2020

27596

Deed Of Trust - 134 LIS 1A Hwy, Youngsville, NC 27586  TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE October 1, 2020

1. LIMITATIONS ON CROSS-COELATERALIZATION. The Loan is not secured by a previously executed security instrument if a non-possessory, non-purchase
money security interest is created in "household goods" in connection with a "consumer lcan," as those terms are defined by federal law governing unfair and
deceptive credit practices. The Loan is not secured by a previously executed security instrument if your fail to fulfill any necessary requirements or fail to conform
to any limitations of the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, (Reguiation X), that are required for loans secured by the Property or if, as a result, the other debt
would become subject to Section 670 of the John Warner National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2007.

The Loan is not secured by & previously executed security instrument if you fail to fulfill any necessary requirements or fail to conform to any limitations of the
Truth in Lending Act, (Regulfation Z), that are required for foans secured by the Property.
12. DEFAULT, | will be in default if any of the following events (known separately and collectively as an Event of Default) occur;

A. Payments. | fail to make a payment in fuli when due.

B. Insolvency or Bankruptcy. The death, dissolution or insolvency of, appointment of a receiver by or on behalf of, application of any debtor relief law, the
assignment for the benefit of creditors by or on behalf of, the voluntary or invaluntary termination of existence by, or the commencement of any proceeding
under any present or future federal or state insolvency, bankruptcy, reorganization, composition or debtar refief law by or against me or any co-signer,
endarser, surety or guarantor of this Naote or any other abligations | have with you.

C. Failure to Perform. | fail to perform any condition or to keep any promise or covenant of this Note.
D, Other Documents, A default occurs under the terms of any other Loan Document.
E. Other Agreements. | am in default on any other debt or agreement | have with you,

F. Misrepresentation. | make any verbal or written statement or provide any financial information that is untrue, inaccurate, or conceals a material fact at the
time it is made or pravided.

G. Judgment. i fail to satisfy or appeal any judgment against me.

H. Forfeiture. The Property is used in a manner or for a purpose that threatens confiscation by a legal authority.

I. Name Change. [ change my name or assume an additional name without notifying you before making such a change.

J. Property Transfer. | transfer afl or a substantial part of my money or property.

K. Property Value. You determine in good faith that the value of the Property has declined or is impaired.

L. Insecurity. You determine in good faith that 2 materfal adverse change has occurred in my financial condition from the conditicns set foith in my most
recent financial statement before the date of this Note or that the prospect for payment or performance of the Loan is impaired for any reason.

13. DUE ON SALE OR ENCUMBRANCE. You may, at your option, declare the entire balance of this Note to be immediately due and payable upen the creation of,
or contract for the creation of, any lien, encumbrance, transfer or sale of alt or any part of the Praperty. This right is subject to the restrictions imposed by federal
iaw, as applicable.

14. WAIVERS AND CONSENT. To the extent not prohibited by law, | waive protest, presentment for payment, demand, notice of acceleration, notice of intent to
accelerate and notice of dishonor,

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE
North Caralina Promissory Note Initials
NCAXXJHATCHOO000C00002299068N Wolters Kluwer Financial Services ®1996, 2020 Bankers Systems™ Page 2



A. Additional Waivers By Borrower. In addition, I, and any party to this Note and Loan, to the extent permitted by law, consent to certain actions you may
take, and generally waive defenses that may be available based on these actions or based on the status of a party to this Note.

{1) You may renew or extend payments on this Note, regardless of the number of such renewals or extensions.

(2) You may release any Borrower, endorser, guarantor, surety, accommodation maker or any other co-signer,

(3) You may release, substitute or impair any Property securing this Note.

{4) You, or any institution participating in this Note, may invoke your right of set-off,

{6} You may enter Into any sales, repurchases or participations of this Note to any person in any amounts and | waive notice of such sales, repurchases
or participations.

(6) t agree that any of us signing this Note as a Borrower is authorized to modify the terms of this Note or any instrument securing, guarantying or
relating to this Note.

B. No Waiver By Lender. Your course of dealing, or yous forbearance from, or delay in, the exercise of any of your rights, remedies, privileges or right to insist
upon my strict performance of any provisions contained in this Note, or any other Loan Docurent, shall not be construed as a waiver by you, tintess any such

waiver is in writing and is signed by you.

15, REMEDIES. After § default, you may at your aption do any one or more of the following.
A. Acceleration. You may make all or any part of the amount owing by the terms of this Note immediately due.
B. Sources. You may use any and all remedies you have under state or federal law or in any Loan Document.
C. Insurance Benefits. You may make a claim for any and afl insurance benefits or refunds that may be available on my default.
D. Payments Made On My Behalf. Amounts advanced on my behalf will be immediately due and may be added to the balance owing under the terms of this
Note, and accrue interest at the highest post-maturity interest rate,
E. Termination. You may terminate my rights to ebtain advances or other extensions of credit by any of the methods provided in this Note.

F. Set-Off, You may use the right of set-off. This means you may set-off any amount due and payable under the terms of this Note against any right | have to
receive money from you.

My right to recefve money from your incliudes any deposit or share account balance | have with you; any money owed to me on an item presented to you or in
your possession for collection or exchange; and any repurchase agreement or other non-deposit obligation. “Any amount due and payable under the terms of
this Note” means the total amount to which you are entitled to demand payment under the terms of this Note at the time you set-off.

Subject to any other written contract, if my right to recelve money from you is also owned by someone who has not agreed to pay this Note, your right of
set-off will apply to my interest in the obligation and ta any other amounts i could withdraw on my sole request or endorsement.

Your right of set-off does not apply to an account or other obligation where my rights arise only in a representative capacity. It alse does not apply to any
Individual Retirement Account or other tax-deferred retirement account.

You will not be liable for the dishenor of any check when the dishoner occurs because you set-off against any of my accounts, 1 agree to hold you harmiess
from any such claims arising as a resuit of your exercise of your right of set-off.

G. Waiver, Except as otherwise required by law, by choosing any one or mare of these remedies you do not give up your right to use any other remedy. You
do not waive a default if you choose not to use a remedy. By electing not to use any remedy, you do not waive your right to later consider the: event a defaul
and to use any remedies if the default continues or occurs again,

16. COLLECTION EXPENSES AND ATTORNEYS® FEES. On or after the occurrence of an Event of Default, to the extent permitted by law, | agree to pay all
expenses of collection, enforcement or pratection of your rights and remedies under this Note or any other Loan Document. Expenses include, but are not limited
to, reasonable attorneys’ fees not exceeding 15 percent of the outstanding balance of this Note. These expenses are due and payable immediately. if not paid
immediately, these expenses will bear interest from the date of payment until paid ins fulf at the highest interest rate in effect as provided for in the terms of this
Note. All fees and expenses will be secured by the Property 1 have granted to you, if any. In addition, to the extent permitted by the United States Bankruptcy
Code, | agree to pay the reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by you to protect your rights and nterests in connection with any bankiuptcy proceedings initiated by

or against me.

17. COMMISSIONS, | understand and agree that you {or your affifiate) will earn commissions or fees on any insurance products, and may earn such fees on other
services that | buy through you or your affitiate.

18. WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS. 1 have the right and authority to enter into this Note. The execution and delivery of this Note will not violate any
agreement governing me or to which | am a party.

19. APPLICABLE LAW. This Note is governed by the Jaws of North Carolina, the United States of America, and to the extent requived, by the laws of the
jurisdiction where the Property is located, except to the extent such state laws are preempted by federal law.

20. JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY AND SUCCESSORS. My ahbligation to pay the Loan is independent of the obligation of any other person who has also agreed
to pay it. You may sue me alone, or anyone else who is obligated on the Loan, or any number of us together, to collect the Loan. Extending the Loan of new
obligations under the Loan, wilf hot affect my duty under the Loan and 1 will still be obligated to pay the Loan. This Note shall Inure to the benefit of and he
enforceable by you and your successors and assigns and shall be binding upen and enforceable against me and my successors and assigns.

21. AMENDMENT, INTEGRATION AND SEVERABRILITY. This Note may not be amended or madified by oral agreement. No amendment or modification of this
Note is effective unless made in writing. This Note and the other Loan Documents are the complete and {inal expression of the agreement. 1If any provision of this
Note is unenforceable, then the unenforceable provision will be severed and the remaining provisians will still be enforceable. No present or future agreement
securing any other debt | owe you will secure the payment of this Loan If, with respect to this toan, you fail to fulfill any necessary requirements or faii to conform
to any limitations of the Truth in Lending Act (Regulation Z) or the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (Regulation X) that are required for loars secured by the
Property or if, as a resuft, this Loan would become subject to Section 670 of the John Warner National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2007,

22. INTERPRETATION. Whenever used, the singular includes the plural and the plural includes the singular. The section headings are for convenience only and are
not te be used to interpret or define the terms of this Note,

23. NOTICE, FINANCIAL REPORTS AND ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS. Unless otherwise required by law, any notice will be given by delivering it or mailing it by
first class mail to the appropriate party's address listed In the DATE AND PARTIES section, or to any other address designated in writing. Notice ta one Borrower
will be deemed to be notice to all Borrowers. 1 will inform you in writing of any change in my name, address or other application infarmation. 1 wilt provide you
any correct and complete financial statements or other information you request. | agree to sign, deliver, and file any additional documents or certifications that you
may consider necessary to perfect, continue, and preserve my abligations under this Loan and to confirm your fien status on any Property. Time is of the essence,

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE

Morth Carolina Promissory Note Initials
NC/4XXIJHATCHO0D00000002299068N Wolters Kluwer Financial Services ©1996, 2020 Bankers Systems™ Page 3




24. CREDIT INFORMATION. | agree to supply you with whatever information you reasonably request, You wiil make requests for this information without undue
frequency, and will give me reasonable time in which to supply the information.

25. ERRORS AND OMISSIONS. | agree, if requested by you, to fully cooperate in the correction, if necessary, in the reasonable discretion of you of any and all
loan closing documents so that all documents accurately describe the loan between you and me. | agree to assume all costs including by way of illustration and
not limitation, actual expenses, legal fees and marketing losses for failing to reasonably comply with your requests within thirty {30) days,

26. SIGNATURES. By signing under seal, | agree to the terms contained in this Note. 1 aiso acknowledge receipt of a copy of this Note,

BORROWER:
TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE

By Date (Seal)
KARE PATTON-MOTILUCK, INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR

By Date (Seal)
PHILLIP DOUGLAS CORDEIRG, Town Administrator

TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE
North Carolina Promissory Note initials
NC/4XXIHATCHO0000000002259068N Wolters Kluwer Financial Services ®19986, 2020 Bankers Systems™ Page 4



Town of Youngsville

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL
OF A FINANCING AGREEMENT AUTHORIZED BY NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL
STATUTE 160A-20, AND OF OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES
WITH PROCEEDS OF A BORROWING

WHEREAS, the Town of Youngsville, North Carolina desires to construct a new Public Works
Facility on town-owned property on South College Street and to refinance and renovate the Town
Hall building located at 134 US-1A South to better serve the citizens of Youngsville; and

WHEREAS, The Town of Youngsville desires to finance the Project by the use of an installment
contract authorized under North Carolina General Statute 160A, Article 3, Section 20; and

WHEREAS, findings of fact by this governing body must be presented to enable the North
Carolina Local Government Commission to make its findings of fact set forth in North Carolina
General Statute 159, Article 8, Section 151 prior to approval of the proposed contract; and

WHEREAS, the Town Administrator has described to the Town of Youngsville Board of
Commissioners the desirability of adopting a resolution, as authorized by federal tax law, to
facilitate the Town’s use of proceeds from tax-exempt financing or taxable debt, or both, to restore
the Town's funds when the Town makes capital expenditures (the “Expenditures™) prior to closing
on the financing; and

WHEREAS, the Town may advance its own funds to pay expenditures related to acquiring capital
assets, may borrow funds on a short-term taxable or tax-exempt basis in order to pay such
expenditures or may enter into contracts obligating third parties to make certain expenditures
relating to the purchase prior to incurring indebtedness and to receive reimbursement for such
expenditures from proceeds of tax-exempt obligations or taxable debt, or both;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
THE TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE, MEETING IN REGULAR SESSION ON THE 13TH DAY
OF AUGUST 2020, MAKE THE FOLLOWING FINDINGS OF FACT:

Section 1. The project to be financed includes a new Public Works Facility, and Town Hall
refinance and renovation.

Section 2. The Town intends to utilize the proceeds of tax-exempt indebtedness, taxable
indebtedness, or both, including but not limited to installment finance agreements (the
“Indebtedness™), or to incur other debt, which will be used to pay the costs of the Public Works
Facility construction and Town Hall renovation, in an amount not currently expected to exceed
three million dollars ($3,000,000) for the proposed construction, improvements and refinancing.
This amount is adequate and is not excessive. The design-build bids were received in April 2020.
The financing bids were received in August 2020.

Page 1 of 3




Town of Youngsville resolution dated August 13, 2020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING QF AN APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF A
FINANCING AGREEMENT AUTHORIZED BY NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL STATUTE 160A-20,
AND OF OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES WITH PROCEEDS OF A BORROWING

Section 3. That funds in the necessary amount to begin design of the project have been
appropriated by this body via the town’s adopted fiscal year 2020 and 2021 budgets and are
immediately available for the purpose of securing the materials and services necessary to
accomplish the foregoing project.

Section 4. That the funds referenced immediately above shall be reimbursed to the town after
financing is secured from an approved financial institution and made available to the town.

Section 5. That, after examining the bids for financing submitted to the finance officer, this body
directs the finance officer to execute a financing contract (pending approval by the Local
Government Commission) with Union Bank for a term of twenty (20) years at an interest rate of
two and one-half percent (2.5%) with semi-annual payments beginning on August 1, 2021,

Section 6. Examination of the audit reports for the past three (3) fiscal years of the Town of
Youngsville will reflect that the Town's debt management policies are in strict compliance with
North Carolina law.

Section 7. It is not expected that any increase in taxes will be needed to fund the debt service
requirements.

Section 8. The Town of Youngsville is not in default in any of its debt service obligations.

Section 9. This Resolution constitutes the Town’s “official intent,” as that term is defined in 26
C.F.R. § 1.150-2, with regard to the Expenditures,

Section 10.The attorney for the Town of Youngsville will render an opinion that the proposed
Project is authorized by law and is a purpose for which public funds may be expended pursuant to
the Constifution and laws of North Carolina.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the finance officer is hereby authorized
to act on behalf of the Town of Youngsville in filing an application with the North Carolina Local
Government Commission for approval of the Project and the proposed financing contract and other
actions not inconsistent with this resolution.

This resolution is effective upon its adoption this 13th day of August 2020,

The motion to adopt this resolution was made by ,

seconded by and passed by a vote of to

Fonzie Flowers, Mayor

Page 2 of 3



Town of Youngsville resolution dated August 13, 2020

A RESCLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF A
FINANCING AGREEMENT AUTHORIZED BY NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL STATUTE 160A-20,
AND OF OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES WITH PROCEEDS OF A BORROWING

ATTEST:

Emily Hurd, Town Clerk

This is to certify that this is a true and accurate copy of Resolution No.

adopted by the Town of Youngsville Board of Commissioners on the 13th day of August 2020.

Emily Hurd, Town Clerk Date

Page 3 of 3







Phil Cordeiro

From: Ben R <brupert@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, June 29, 2020 8:31 AM
To: Phit Cordeiro

Subject: Re: ABC Board Position
Attachments: Benjamin.Rupert.Resume.pdf
Phil,

First off | would like to thank you for taking time to outline the process to me. [ am excited about the prospect to work

with the Youngsville ABC Board.

When a friend and neighbor, Rick Houser, approached me with the potential opportunity to serve the town and people
of Youngsville as a member of the Youngsville ABC Board, | was thrilled. After serving on the Youngsville Area Kids Soccer
League for the last few years, | recognize the greatest way to bring sustainable growth and improve efficiency into any
organization is to serve as a volunteer or a board member. Knowing and learning about sales, human resources, cash
flow and logistical issues will give me a better understanding of current hurdles that need to be addressed. As a member
of the Town of Youngsville ABC Board, { will provide support in the development of new sales strategies and the
implementation of the newly adopted strategies. | will work with the in store sales team, board members and
customers to ensure the Youngsville ABC store delivers a quality experience and exceeds the expectations of the

customer.

When conversing with Rick, he has mentioned the Youngsville ABC is looking into opening a new store and developing:
the tract of land the current store oceupies. My professional background is in civil engineering and construction. | will
work directly with the developers, engineers and construction companies in developing a new ABC store and shopping
center. | will provide useful industry knowledge and know how to ensure the town of Youngsville receives the best
development possibility. | have experiences as a design lead and engineering manager for many mixed used, commercial
and residential developments throughout the Raleigh/Durham area. [n the role as a team leader, | was able to work with
many large-scale developers and build strong relationships through communication, understanding and delivering on
promises. In my current role, | put together budgets and manage a team of technical staff for commercial, institutional,
health care and governmental capital projects. | am well versed in construction management, construction procedures

and local regulations.

My diverse background and community involvement allow me to be relatable to many opinions. | am able to approach
situations with compassion and an open mind. | believe | will be a great asset to the Town of Youngsville ARC Board as

the town moves through the next phase of growth.

Attached you will find my resume. Iif you have any questions or concerns, feel free to reach out to me. | look forward to

hearing from you in the near future,

Thank you

Ben Rupert




BENJAMIN S. RUPERT

320 Paddy Lane, Youngsville, NC 27596
brupert@gmail.com / (910) 381-1848

PROFILE
*  Project and construction management skills » Technical and analytical problem solver
s Results driven » Goaloriented
s  Mechanicallyinclined «  Strong communication, management and
+ Budget minded interpersonal skills

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Faulconer Construction Company, Cary, NC April 2018 - Present
Estimator/Business Development .
s Developed relationships with clients, owners and other trade contractors to feed the pipeline for future growth
» Implemented, analyzed and modified construction crews to reflect the need for different equipment and crews
*  Executed production studies with excavators, backhoes, bulldozers, loaders and trucking in order to ensure production is
maximized and operations runsmoothly
« Directed & advised subcontractors to ensure their guotes did not contain scope gaps, job durations and construction
means and methods
» Managed a team that executed earthwork and material take off for projects from 1 Million to 150 Million dollars
s  Networked and collaborated with professionals, subcontractors and manufacturing representatives to provide complete
and accurate bids

Thalle Construction Company, Hilisborough, NC May 2016 — April 2018
Junior Estimator/Engineering Services
+« Reviewed and analyzed construction design documents and specifications to deliver a comprehensive and detailed
construction estimate for production times, resource allocation, materials, equipment wutilization and labor required to
complete various construction projects
s Organized, quantified and qualified bids received from subcontractors
» Responsible for business development and expanding core competencies
» Performed HCSS Bid ltem input, crew and equipmententry

Edens Land, Durham, NC November 2014 — May 2016
Project Engineer
* Performed due diligence for candidate sites such zoning, utility allocation, protected areas
»  Provided fleld support to contractors to ensure utilities, grading and drainage meet requirements
+« Managed a diverse group of engineers that implemented ail aspects of residential and commercial land development
projects

FDH Engineering, Inc., Raleigh, NC April 2013 —~ November 2014
Project Engineer / Civi! Engineering Group

«  Designed, implemented and managed rehabilitation of rural access road and grading of eroded & raw land sites

«  Contacted contractors, surveyors and construction material suppliers

*  Prepared bid documents, technical specifications and review bids from contractors

« Fuifilled QA/QC and post constructioninspections

Service Technician April 2005 — September 2011
Honda of Concord, Concord, NC

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATES

B.S., Civil Engineering, University of North Carolina Charlotte, 2012

Automotive Diagnosis and Repair, Universal Technical Institute, 2005



Town of Youngsville
Memorandum

To:  Youngsville Board of Commissioners
From: Bob Clark, Planning and Zoning Ofﬁcerk .
CC:  Erin Klinger, Planning and Zoning Administrator
Date: August 11,2020

Re:  Final Performance Bond Release — Hampton Downs
Encl: Hampton Downs of Youngsville, LLC Correspondence

Item: Consider authorizing release of remaining portion of cash bond and accrued interest in
escrow totaling $78,630.14 requested by Hampton Downs of Youngsville, LLC for satisfactory
completion of pavement and sidewalk improvements in Hampton Downs of Youngsville.

Comments: Hampton Downs of Youngsville (final plat recorded in Bk. 2016, Pg. 225-226) is a
120-unit (60 duplexes) residential subdivision developed off Wolfpack Lane and with extension
of Ag Drive, Hannah Lane, Ryleigh Lane, and Massey Drive.

In 2016 Hampton Downs of Youngsville, LLC posted a cash performance bond in the amount of
$278,025.00 to guarantee construction and completion of streets, utilities, and sidewalk to enable
final plat recording. Partial releases amounting to $200,081.25 were made as most of the
construction was done in 2016 and 2017.

The remaining principal balance of $77,943.75 and $638.39 accrued interest totaling $78,630.14
being held in escrow is requested by the developer for release following recent completion of the
final lift of asphalt and sidewalk improvements. The planning staff and town’s consulting
engineer find the streets and sidewalk improvements satisfactory and agree with the request.

Action Requested: Consider a motion authorizing the Finance Officer to release the remaining
portion of cash bond and accrued interest totaling $78,630.14 requested by Hampton Downs of
Youngsville, LLC for satisfactory completion of pavement and sidewalk improvements in
Hampton Downs of Youngsville.

Page 1 of 1



Firefox https://outlaok.office.com/mail/inbox/id/ AAQkADhhM2JiMTEA4L...

Hampton Downs of Youngsvilie

Melinda Rose <mrose7@protonmail.com>
Thu 8/6/2020 5:27 PM
To: Bob Clark <bclark@townofyoungsville.org>

& 1 attachments (187 kB)
Request for release of funds.pdF;

Good Afternoon Mr. Clark,

Please find attached our formal request to release the funds held for the completion of the
Hampton Downs of Youngsville duplex project.

Please call me at 252-567-3569 or Mark Hurt at 252-813-9508 if you have any questions.
We have enjoyed working with the Town during the process and look forward to our next
project together.

Thank you,

Melinda

Melinda B Rose, CCIFP

Hampton Downs of Youngsville LLC
201 N Winstead Ave

Suite D

Rocky Mount, NC 27804
252-567-3569
mrose] @ protonmail.com

lofl 8/7/2020, 4:27 PM



HAMPTON DOWNS OF YOUNGSVILLE, LLC

PO Box 9038
Rocky Mount, NC 27804

July 16 2020

Town of Youngsville
Mr. Bob Clark

Dear Mr. Clark,

This is to formally request the release of deposit held as bond for the Hampton Downs
Subdivision Project. All work has been completed.

Please mail the check to:

Hampton Downs of Youngsville LLC

PO Box 9038

Rocky Mount NC 27804

You may reach me at 252-813-9508 if you have any questions.

We thank you and your staff for the Town's cooperation during this project. It is always
a pleasure to do business in your community.

Sincerely,

Marcus J Hurt







Town of Youngsville
Memorandum

To:  Youngsville Board of Commissioners W
From: Bob Clark, Planning and Zoning Officer

CC:  Erin Klinger, Planning and Zoning Administrator
Date: August 10, 2020

Re:  Bond No. 6670431 Release —Patterson Woods Phase 2
Encl:  Correspondence, bond, and location map

Item: Consider a request by Patterson Woods, LLC to release Surety Bond No. 6670431 in the
amount of $35,000.00 for Camille Street construction at US1A at the intersection of USIA in
Phase 2 Patterson Woods subdivision.

Comments: A $35,000.00 performance bond No. 6670431 guaranteed construction by the
Patterson Woods, LLC under contact with S.T. Wooten Corporation for completion of
approximately 100 ft+/- of Camille Circle at the southernmost (2™ entrance) to East Woods of
Patterson in Phase 2 of the subdivision. The related turn lanes and intersection improvements at
its intersection with USTA were completed and accepted by NCDOT. The planning staff is
satisfied the construction covered by the bond has been completed in conformance with the
construction plans and standards of the town.

Action Requested: Consider a motion releasing Surety Bond No. 6670431 in the amount of
$35,000.00 as requested by Patterson Woods, LLC for Camille Street construction at the
intersection of US1A in Phase 2 Patterson Woods subdivision.

Page 1 of 1




Firefox https:/foutlook.office.com/mail/search/id/A A QkADhWhM2JMTE4L...

Formal request to cancel bond for Patterson Woods and roadway acceptance

Steve Gould <goulddevelopment1@gmail.com>

Sat 7/18/2020 3:42 PM

To: Erin Klinger <eklinger@townofyoungsville.org>: Bob Clark <bclark@townofyoungsville.org>
Cc: Bab Neeb <rwneeb@diazit.com>

Erin,

Patterson Woods, LLC would like to have canceled the performance bond of 35,000.00 for
outstanding improvements along 1-A adjacent to second entrances of Patterson Woods
phase-2 and Eastwoods of Patterson phase-5.

Patterson Woods has received a letter from DOT for acceptance of work and for maintenance
aleng 1-A . Since both roadway entrances and connection into the subdivision roads for
phase-2 and phase-5 have been completed we ask for them to also be accepted by the town.
Phase 2-5 has all homes built and should be accepted by the township and if there are minor
repairs needed after receiving a list we will be happy to complete to the towns standards.

Thanks,

Stephen C. Gould, partner and manager of Patterson Woods, LLC
919-291-3069

Requested by,

Gould Development Consultants, LLC

833-A Wake Forest Business Park
Wake Forest, NC 27587

lofl §/11/2020, 1:52 PM



’ THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

Bond No. 6670431

AlA Document A312

Performance Bond

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable,

CONTRACTOR {Name and Address): SURETY (Name and Principal Place of Business):

S. T. Wooten Corporation : Safeco Insurance Gompany of Amertca
P. O. Box 2408 6230 Fairview Road, Suite 230
Witson, NG 27894-2408 Charlotte, NC 28210

OWNER (Name and Address):

Gould Development Consultants, LLC
833A Wake Forest Business Park
Wake Forest, NC 27587

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Date: ¢{-0/-0
Amount: $70,000.00  Seventy Thousand Dollars and 00/100

Dascription (Name and Location);, Patterson Woods Phase 2, Youngsville, NC - Wake County

BOND

Date (Not earller than Censtruction Contract Date):
Amount: $35,000.00 Thirty Five Thousand Doltars and 00/100

Modifications to this Bond: K} None [} See Page3
CONTRACTOR AS PRINGIPAL SURETY
Company: {Corporate Seal) Company: (Corporate Seal)
S, T. Wooten cf ratk Salect Insurance Company of America
[T AWy
Slgnature: Signature: ! . Al e
Name and Title{ }{eu RY D RBuysde Vf? Name and Title:Debra S, Ritter g
Attorney-in-Fact
(Any additional signatures appear on page 3)

(FOR INFORMATION ONLY - Name, Address and Telaphone)  OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE {Architecl; EMael heth
AGENT or BROKER: party} :

Thomas Rutherfoord, Inc.

6230 Fairview Road, Suite 230

Charlotte, NC 28210

704-365-6213 !

AA DOGUMENT A312 « PERFORMANGE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND « DECEMBER 1084 ED. » AJA ®
THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITEGTS, 1735 NEW YORK AVE,, MW,, WASHINGTON, D,C. 20006 A3121984 1
THIRD PRINTING = MARCH 1087




THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

Bond No. 6670431

AlA Document A3l

Labor and Material Payment Bond

THIS BOND IS JSSUED SIMULTANEOUSLY WITH PERFORMANCE BOND IN FAVOR OF THE
OWNER CONDITIGNED ON THE FULL AND FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE OF THE GONTRAST

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that S. T. Wooten Corporation

(Hemainsont full namo and addross of logal s of Contractar)
P. O. Box 2408 Wilson, NC 27894-2408

as Principal, hereinafter called Principal, and,  Safeco Insurance Company of America
{Hore Inson ull name and addrass or lagal thle of Suraty)

6230 Fairview Road, Sufte 230, Charlotte, NC 28210

as Surety, hereinaRer called Surely, are held and firmiy bound urte  Gould Development Consultants, LLC
fHora insert full nerno and sdiross of lagal e of Cwaor)

B33A Wake Forest Business Park Wake Forest, NG "27587
as Obliges, hereinafter caffed Owner, for the use and benefit of claimants as hereinbelow defined, inthe

amount of Thirty Five Thousand Dollars and 00/100
(Hete Insert & sum equat to at least one-hall of Lhe cortract price) Dollars ($35,000.00 )

for the payment whereof Principal and Surely bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators,
~ Successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents,

WHEREAS,

Princlpal has by written agreemerst dated , entered Into a contract with Owner

for
(Har Incart full nmmo, address and dezeription of projach

Patterson Woods Phase 2, Youngsville, NC - Wake County

i accordance with Drawings and Specifications prepared by
(Horo Ensent full namo and address or tegel Btto of Arclitar))

s

which contract s by reference made a part hereof, and Is herelnafier referred to as the Contract.

AADOCUMENT AH11 * PERFORMANCE SOND AND LAHOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENY BOND * AlA @
FEBRUARY 1870 £D. © THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 MY, AVE, NW, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006




' LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION Is such that, if Princlpal shall promptly make payment o all
clalmants as hereinafter defined, for all labor and material used or reasonably required for use in the pedformance of the
Contract, then this obligation shall be vold, otherwise &t shall remain in {ull force and effect, subject, howevei, to the following

conditions:

1. A claimant is defined as one having a direct
contract with the Prncipal of with a Subcontractor of the
Principal for labor, material, or both, used or reasonably
required for use in tha perdormiance of the Contract, labor
and material being construed to Include that part of water,
gas, powaer, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or
rental of equipmant directly applicable to the Contract,

2, Tha above named Principal and Surely hereby jointly
and severally agree with the Owner that evary claimant és
hereln defined, who has not been pait In full before the
expiration of a perlod of ninety (90} days after the date on
which the tast of such claimant's work or labor was done or
performed, ar materlals were furnished by such clalmant,
may sue on lhis bond for the use of such claimant,
prosecute the suit to final judgment for such sum or sums
as may be Justly due claimant, and have execution thereon,
The owner shall not be liable for the payment of any costs
or expenses of any such suit.

3. No suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by
any claimant:

a) Unless claimant, other than one having a direct
contract with the Principal, shall have given written notice to
any two of the following: the Principal, the Owner, or the
Surety above hamed, within ninety (80) days after such
claimant did or performed the last of the work or labor, or
tumnished the tast of the matertals for which said claim s
n;:aidaédstating with substantial accuracy the smount
claim

S, T. Wooten Corporation

and the name of the pary to whom the materlals were
fumished, or for whom the work or labor was done or
performed,  Such notice shall be sewved by maiting the
same by registered mall or cetified mall, postage prepaid,
in an envelope addressed to the Principal, Cwner o Surety,
at any place where an office is regularly maintained for the
transaction of business, or served in any manner In which
legal process may be seved In the state in which the

-aforesald project is located, save that such service need not

be made by a public officer,

b)  After the expiration of one (1) year fofiowing the date on
which principal ceased Work on said Contract, it being
understood, however, that if any limitation embodied in this
bond Is prohibited by any law controlling the construction
hereof such limitation shall be deemed to be amended so
as to' be equal to the minimum perod of imitation permitted
by such law,

¢) Other than in state court of competent jurisdiction in
and for the county or other political subdivision of the state -
In which the Projsct, or-any part theredf, Is situated, or in
the United States District Cowrt for the district In which the
Project, or any part thereof, is situated, and not elsewhere,

4.~ The amount of this bond shall be reduced by and
to the extent of any payment or payments made in good
faith hereunder, Inclusive of the payment by Surely or
mechanics' liens which may be filed of record against said
Improvement, whather or not claim for the amount of such
tien be presented under and against this bond.

day of

Signed and sealed this
ATTEST:
By;
{(Wildess)

8

(Principal) (Seal)

A

HewRY D ZdTis (e Jr., Vice PresinaT

Safeco [nsurance Company of America

1) .J" L e Ty

Rarmona Fewall

Surely) {5¢8)

By D\LM eg |

" Debra S. Ritler

{Tite) Wttorney-in-Fact

EDDCUMENT A1 * PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR ANDMATERIAL PAYMENT BOND ¢ AIA ©®
FEBRUARY 1870 ED, * THE AMERICAN NSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1755 MY, AVE., NW., WASHINGTON, D.0. 20008




Exhibit 3: Bond No. 6670431 Release

100 ft of Camille Circle covered by $35,000 bond No. 6670431 measured from the USI1A- right-of-way.
Below is a snip from the construction plans showing the portion of r-o-w and street in Phase 2 Patterson
Woods.




Town of Youngsville
Memorandum

To: Mayor Fonzie Flowers
Town Board of Commissioners

From: Erin Klinger, Planning and Zoning Administrator

CC:  Phil Cordeiro, Town Administrator
Emily Hurd, Town Clerk

Date: August 10, 2020

Re:  Schedule Public Hearing to consider text amendments to the Youngsville Development
Ordinance to comply with new North Carolina General Statute Chapter 160D legislation.

Action Requested: Consider authorizing staff to advertise a public hearing for 7:00 PM on
September 10, 2020, in consideration of text amendments to the Youngsville Development
Ordinance, Sections 1.6 — Jurisdiction; 1.7 — Authority; 2.9-3 — Exceptions to height limitation;
2.13-1 — Accessory uses and structures; 2.18-2 — Minimum setbacks along thoroughfares;
2.18-4 — Exceptions; 2.18-5 — Right to Appeal; Article 3 — Definitions; Sections 4.2 — Oath of
Office; 4.2-1 — Planning Board Authority; 4.2-2 — Planning Board Membership; 4.3-1 — Board of
Adjustment Authority; 4.3-2 — Board of Adjustment Membership; 4.3-5 — Board of Adjustment
Conflicts; 5.1 — General; 5.2 — Initiation of Amendments; 5.3-2 — Review by the Youngsville
Planning Board; 5.3-3 — Review by the Youngsville Town Board of Commissioners;

5.4-3 — General Requirements; 5.4-4 — Application Procedure; 6.1-2 — Provisions that may not be
varied by the Board of Adjustment; 6.1-3 — Application; 6.1-4 — Action by the Board of
Adjustment; 6.1-7 — Effective date of decision; 6.2-3 — Parties who may file an appeal;

6.2-7 — Action by the Board of Adjustment; 7.1-1 — Approval required; 7.3-2 — Building permit
expiration; New subsection 7.3-3; Sections 7.5-2 — Plan submittal; 7.8 — Special use approvals;
7.13-1 — Purpose; 7.13-6 — Additional restrictions and requirements; 7.13-8 — Permit validity;
7.13-10 — Status at expiration of term; 7.14-2 — Notice of procedure; 7.14-3 — Special notice
requirements for telecommunication towers/structures; 7.15-1 — Authorization and applicability;
7.15-2 — Content of development agreement; 7.15-3 — Procedures for entering into development
agreements; 7.15-4 — Administration of development agreements and termination for material
breach; 8.4 — District development standards and permitted uses listed for each district;

8.5 — Overlay Districts; Article 10 — Uses with additional standards and conditional uses;
Sections 11.5-3 — Performance guarantee in lieu of installation of plant materials;

11.8-2 — Penalties; 16.1-2 — Exempt land divisions; 16.1-5 — Approval required;

16.1-9 — Designation of approval agency; 16.1-7 — Violations; 16.1-9 — Required improvements;
17.6 — Exempt signs; 18.1 — Statutory authorization, findings of fact, purpose, and objectives;
19.2 — Purpose and authority; 22.3-1 — Lawfully established nonconforming lots;

22.3-2 — Structures, including signs; 22.4-1 — Discontinuation of nonconforming uses;

23.2 — Establishment and authority; 23.6-5 — Stop work orders; and 23.6-6 — Revocation of
permits.

Comments: Attached is a copy of the requested amendments. The Planning Board reviewed
these amendments at its regularly scheduled August meeting.

Page 1of 1



Amendments to Article 1

1.6 Jurisdiction

The provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to all the territory encompassed in the Town of Youngsville,
North Carolina, and its extraterritorial jurisdiction as now or hereafter fixed, as depicted on the Town’s
Official Zoning Map on file at the Youngsville Town Hall. This map is hereby incorporated and made a
part of this Ordinance. This Ordinance shall govern the development and use of all land and structures
within the Town as provided for by Article 19 2, Planning and Development Regulation Jurisdiction

Repulation-ef Development of NCGS 160AD Cities-and Towans Local Pianmng and Development
Regulation, i

1.7 Authority

This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to portions of one or more of the foliowmg authorities in NCGS:

Ghapter 160A-{Cities-and- Towas) Chapter 160D ( Local Planning and Development Regulation), Chapter

113A (Pollution Conlrol and Environment), Chaptcr 121 {Environmental Controls), Chapter 133 (Public
Works), and Chapter 136 (Roads and Highways). This Ordinance may be amended from time to time as
required or allowed by subsequent leglslatlve enactments i -




Amendments to Article 2

2.9-3 Exceptions to height limitation. The height limitations of this section shall not apply to public
utility poles and liens, skylights, and roof structures for elevators, stairways, tanks, heating, ventilation
and air-conditioning equipment, solar panels appurtenant to the prineiple principal structure, or similar
equipment for the operation and maintenance of a building, and any device used to screen such structures
and equipment

2.13-1 Accessory uses and structures. Accessory uses and structures related and incidental to residential
principal structure(s) on the lot shall be setback a minimum of 7.5 feet: beyond the front and/or side street-
facing facade(s) of the conditioned space, and setback a minimum £ four (4) feet from interior side and
rear lot line(s). If the accessory structure exceeds the height of the principal structure, it must meet the
minimum setback for prineiple principal structures on mtcnor side and/or  Tear lot line(s).

2.18-2 Minimum setbacks along thoroughfares. The bmld-to or setback lme for -any lot which abuts a
thoroughfare classified on the adopted transportation p}an for Division 40 5 shall be measured from the
right-of-way line outlined in the table below (Table 2. 18-2) 1f ex1st1ng right-of-way is; of lesser width. The
proposed right-of-way line established for .

2.18-4 Exceptions. The standards herein prescnbmg setbacks from the proposed nght-of way line w1ll

right-of-way lines along thoroughfaré :

2.18-5 nght to Appeai

(C) Balancmg the pubhc mterest in cnforcmg the setback requirements and the interest of the owner, the
grant of relie f i _required by cons;deratlons" fj Justlcc and equity.

£, the Board of AI' :..stment may impose reasonable and appropriate conditions and
safeguards to protect the interests of neighboring properties. The Board of Adjustment’s decision shall be
subject to review by thf:_, superior court by proceedings in the nature of certiorari in accordance with

N.C-G-5-160A-388(e) NCGS 160D-406(h).




Amendments to Article 3

ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION. A decision made in the implementation, administration, or

enforcement of development regulations that involves the determination of facts and the application of
obiective standards as set forth in this Ordinance.,

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING. A proceeding to gather facts needed to make an administrative

decision.

AGRICULTURAL USE. The usc of open field land for agricultural production purposes, including
farming, dairying, stock watering, pasturage agriculture, hortiéiil't'ui;e" floriculture, viticulture, and animal
and poultry husbandry, and the necessary accessory uses for storing the -supplies and products. The term
shall include incidental retail sales by the producer of products raised on the farm. Agriculture does
include forest management and timber harvesting activities, provided a management plan for that activity
has been prepared by a Professional Forester reglstered in the State of North Carolma See definition of
Forest Land. Also, as defined in NCGS 160A 106-181: 1 g

BEDROOM. A room for slecping in that i_s;.c:'iééi'gg_ ated as such 'é'ri-'qonstruction plans,

BONA FIDE FARM. A farm' used for Urposes mcludm the "roductmn and activities relating or
incidental to the productmn of crops, grains, fru1ts vcgetables omamcntal and flowering plants, dairv,
livestock, poultry, and all other forms of a,qncuitule as defined in NCGS 106-581.1. Activities incidental
to the farm include existing or new residences occupled by the owner, lessee, or operator of the farm and

other buildmgs or structures supportmg the farm use and operatlon (see NCGS 160D-903),

0505+ Anv structure usccl or mtended for

supporting or sheltering any use or'occupancy (see also structure).

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE A document that is required by NCGS Chapter 160D to represent
that the work, as described in the'permit documents, has been completed. This document will be issued by

the Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator at the conclusion of all completed work done under a

permit prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy by Franklin County.

CLOSE FAMILIAT RELATIONSHIP. A spouse, parent, child, brother, sister, grandparent, or

grandchild. Includes the step, half, and in-law relationships.




COMPLETED. (4.) permanent velocity controls on the inlet and outlet pipes and channels have been
installed.

DETERMINATION. A written, final, and binding order or requirement regarding an administrative
decision,

DEVELOPMENT. Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate requiring a permit from
the Town of Youngsville, including but not hmlted to bua{diﬂgs—er—e%her—sﬁuetufes the bu11dmg,
alteration, or demolition of any structure; mis ; ; ngpa excava
drilling-operations excavation, grading, filling, clemmg, or alter Vil _of land ef-stefage-ef—eqmpmeﬁ%ﬁf
materials the subdivision of land as defined in NCGS 160D 802,- or él"substantlal change in the use of land

or the intensity of the use of land.

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. An agreement 'between the Town of Youngsv le and a developer
pursuant to NCGS 166A-466-20 160D-102(13) for a largc-scale development with a lengthy build-out
period and having a public-private partnership component 11 ol 'ng mutual financial interests.

regulation adonted in accordanc 'wzth NCGS ChaDter 160D.

DOWN-ZONING. A’ ibnin ordinance that affects an area of land by either a) decreasing the
development density of the land to ‘be less dense than was allowed under its previous usage or b) reducin
the permitted uses of land that arc specified in a zoning ordinance to fewer uses than were allowed under

its QI'CVIOUS ZOIlll‘lg clasmﬁcatwn

DWELLING. Any building, structure, manufactured, or mobile home, or part thereof, used and occupied

for human habitation or intended to be so used. This includes any accessory structures, but excludes
manufactured homes, mobile homes, or recreational vehicles if used solely for a seasonal vacation

PUIpOse.




DWELLING UNIT. One or more rooms, designed, occupied, or intended for occupancy as separate living
quarters for one family, with a separate entrance and cooking, sleeping, and sanitary facilities provided
therein. Units in dormitories, hotels, motels, shelters for the homeless or other structures designed for
transient residents are not dwelling units. (See NCGS 166A-390 160D-706.)

EVIDENTIARY HEARING. A hearing to gather competent, material. and substantial evidence to make

findings for a quasi-judicial decision as required by this Ordinance.

EXISTING DEVELOPMENT.

(C.) Having an approved site-specific or phased development plan.-ﬁiﬁiééfﬂpl—iaﬁe—e—w%ﬁa—PIGGS—lé(}A—

LEGISLATIVE DECISION, The adoption, amendmen'f.;ydt repeal of a 1'e;<ilj_la_tic_)n under this Ordinance.

LEGISLATIVE HEARING. A hearing to solicit nub}i.é":c:‘gjp]mem_: ona proposed legislative decision.

NONCONFORMING USE. Any current legal use of property not otherwme permitted under current
zoning regulations. This may include, without lumtatlon, 1).a use legally established under requirements
at the time of installation or construction but not now perlmtted in the zoning district in which it is located
or 2) a use conditionally’ allowed in the zoning dlstncts 111 Whlch itis located but for which no cenditional
special use permit has bccn obtamed o -

OUASI-JUDICiAfDECISIOﬁ Adecmlon iﬁvbivmg thc findings of fact regarding a specific application

uasi- udl_cm[ decisions mclud_c but 5 arc not limited to, decisions involving variances, special use permits
and appeals of administrative decisions. -

[This space intentionally left blank. |



SITE-SPECIFIC BEVELOPMENT-VESTING PLAN. A plan that has been submitted to the Town by a
landowner describing with reasonable certainty the type and intensity of a use for a specific parcel or
parcels of property and which establishes vested rights for a specific period of time, per the North
Carolina General Statutes. Such plan my be in the form of, but not limited to, any of the following plans
or approvals: a subdivision plat, a preliminary or general development plan, a eenditienal special use
permit, a conditional district zoning plan, or any other land-use approval designation as may be utilized
by the Town. Such a plan shall include the approximate boundaries of the site; significant topographical
and other natural features affecting development of the site; the approximate location on the site of the
proposed buildings, structures, and other improvements; the approximate dimensions, including height, of
the proposed building and other structures; the approximate location of all existing and proposed
infrastructure on the site, including water, sewer, roads, and pedcs_tr_iﬁfi_i_f\#a]kways; and any other
information required by the Town for the type of plan or approy ";_"eqttested by the landowner. A variance
shall not constitute a site-specific development vesting plan, Neither a sketch plan nor any other
document which fails to describe with reasonable certainty the'type and intensity of use for a specific
parcel or parcels of property may constitute a sxte—spec;ﬁdde#elepmen% vesting plan.

SLEEPING UNIT. A room or space in which people slécg, which can also includg"g' ermanent provisions

for living, eating, and either sanitation or kitchen facilities; but not both Such rooms and spaces that are
also part of a dwelling unit are not slccpmg" it_s. .

SUBDIVSION. All divisions of a tract or parcel of 1and into two or more lots, building sites, or other
divisions when any one or'more: of those d1v131ons is crea or the purpose of sale or building
development, whether. 1mmed1ate or future, and s’h’ail_i_ include all d1v1swns of land involving the dedication
of a new street or change i in existing streets; except as e emptcd by NCGS 160A-376(a) 160D-802(a)
listed in Article 16 of this 01_‘_(1_]__]}&11(:6._. k-

USE, G@NBI—"HQN—A—I: SPECIAL A use Whlch i8 generally compatible with other land uses allowed in a
zoning dlstnct but which, because of its umque characteristics or potential impacts on the surrounding
ne1ghborhood and the Town of Youngsvﬂle requires individual consideration of its location, design,
configuration, and/or operatlon at particular location proposed,

VESTED RIGHT. A rlght pu_lsu int to NCGS160A-385-1 160D-102(33) to undertake and complete the
development and use of property under the terms and conditions of an-approved-site-development plan an
approval secured as specified in NCGS 160D-108 or under common law.

WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITIES. See NGGS-160A-466-51 160D-931.




Abbreviations

COC — Certificate of Compliance

MET—Multi-fomilv-Residential Transitional




Amendments to Article 4

4.2 Oath of Office. All members appointed to boards under this Article shall, before entering their duties,
take an oath of office as required by NCGS 160A-61.

**Note: Adding this section will require the numbers for the subsequent sections to be shifted down.

4.2 Planning Board

4.2-1 Authority. There is hereby created a planning agency, purs  NCGS 160A-361 160D-301 , to

be known as the Town of Youngsville Planning Board.

three (3) year term, one of which shall be an ETJ merﬁbe -
(2) year term, one of whlch shali be n ETJ mcm_' er; and

43-2 Meiiib’ership

{A) Number o .Membe1 s. The Board of Adjustment shall consist of five (5) members, three (3)
members who shall f side within the Town Limits, and two (2) members who shall reside within the
Town’s area of extrat ritorial ]unsdmtlon in accordance with NCGS 160A-362 160D-307. Members
residing within the Town Limits shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners. Members residing
outside the Town Limits w1th1_____' “area of the Youngsville ETJ shall be appointed by the Franklin
County Commissioners. All members shall have equal rights, privileges, and duties; except as defined for
officers by adopted Rules of Procedure. All members shall be appointed for three (3) year terms except in
making the original appointments. In making the original appointment, two (2) members shall be
appointed for a three (3) year term, one of which shall be an ETJ member; two (2) members shall be
appointed for a two (2) year term, one of which shall be an ETJ member; and one (1) member shall be
appointed for a one (1) year term,




(B.) Alternates. The Board of Commissioners may, in its discretion, appoint alternate members to serve
on the Board of Adjustment in the absence or temporary disqualification of any regular member or to fill
a vacancy pending appointment of a member, Alternate members shall be appointed for the same term, at
the same time, and in the same manner as regular members. Each alternate member, while attending any
regular or special meeting of the board and serving on behalf of any regular member, shall have and may
exercise all the powers and duties of a regular member. (G-85160A388{a) NCGS 160D-302)

4.3-5 Conflicts. A member of the Board of Adjustment shall not participate in or vote on any quasi-
Judicial matter in a manner that would violate affected persons’ constitutional rights to an impartial
decision maker. Impermissible conflicts include, but are not limited'to, a member having a fixed opinion
prior to hearing the matter that is not susceptible to change; undisclosed ex parte communications; a close
familial, business, or other associational relationship with an affectcd person; or a financial interest in the
outcome of the matter, If an objection is raised to a member’s partlclpatlon and that member does not
recuse himself or herself, the remaining members shall_by majority vote rulc on the objection (G-5—160A-
388 NCGS 160D-109(d)).




Amendments to Article 5

5.1 General

The Youngsville Town Board of Commissioners may amend, supplement, modify, or repeal any
provision of this Ordinance or amend the zening maps according to the procedure established by No&-G=8
160A-384 NCGS 160D-601. Such amendments shall be evaluated for compliance with the “Town Plan
2040 — Comprehensive Land Use & Master Plan,” adopted March 14, 2019, including subsequent
amendments adopted by the Town Board of Commissioners of the Town of Youngsville and other
applicable adopted plans, and may require a land use plan and/or comprehensive master plan amendment
to ensure compatibility between the plan(s) and the amendment. Amendments and modifications shall be
acted upon by the Town Board of Commissioners after recommen tion from the Planning Board.

5.1-1 Unless provided otherwise by law, all development approva]s nade pursuant to this Article attach to
and run with the land. -

5.2 Initiation of Amendments.

Proposed changes or amendments to either the text of this Ordinance or the Official Zoning Map may be
initiated by the Youngsville Town Board of Commissioners, the Youngsville Planning Board, the
Youngsville Planning, Zoning, & Subdivisic Admmlstrator any owner of a legal or equitable interest in
land located in the Town, or any resident of the. Town havmg a legal of. equitable interest in the land
affected by the proposcd amcndment (see Sectlon 5.3- I(D “{his Art1clc)

No amendments to zonm _re ulatlons'_or a zonin ma' t at downzones roperty shall be initiated nor
shall they be enforceable w1thout the written consent of all property owners whose property is thr_a subject

of the down-zoning amendmc_nt, unless the c_l_own~zonmg amendment is initiated by the Town.

532 Rewew by the Youngsvﬂle Planmng Board

(B.) Recommendatlon by the Y _ gsv1lie PIanmng Board. Following a recommendation by the
Youngsville Piamnng Board on the proposed amendment(s), the action shall be reported to the
Youngsville Town Board of Commlssmnels for a publie legislative hearing and final action according to
the process set forth in Sectlon 5.3-3 of this Ordinance. The publie Jegislative hearing will be scheduled
as provided by Town Board:of Cx mxmssnoners rules of procedure for calling public hearings.

[This space intentionally lefi blank.]

10




(D.) Content of recommendation and statements of both consistency and reasonableness. Any
recommendation made by the Youngsville Planning Board to the Youngsville Town Board of
Comimissioners pursuant to this section shall be in writing and shall include a statement describing
whether the proposed amendment is both consistent with the “Town Plan 2040 — Comprehensive Land
Use & Master Plan,” adopted March 14, 2019, including subsequent amendments adopted by the Town
Board of Commussioners of the Town of Youngsville and other applicable adopted plans thatis
applieable, and shall state whether and how the proposed amendment is reasonable. In addition, such
recommendation may address any other subject of interest by the Planning Board. A comment by the
Planning Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the Town’s “Town Plan 2040
Comprehensive Land Use & Master Plan,” adopted March 14, 2019, including subsequent amendments
adopted by the Town Board of Commissioners of the Town of Youngsville and other applicable adopted
plans for the area affected and/or unreasonable shall not preclude consideration of approval of the
proposed amendment by the Town Board of Commissioners (N:6:G:8:-166A-383 NCGS 160D-604(d)).

(E.) Conflict of Interest. No member of the Planning Board shall vote on a recommendation regarding any
zoning map (rezoning) or text amendment where the outcome of the matter beinéconsidered is likely to
have a direct, substantial, and readily identifiable unpact on the member or if the landowner of the
property subject to a rezoning petition or the applicant for a text amendment is a person with whom the

member has a close familial, business, or othcr assoc1at10na1 relatmnshlp_ (N—C—G—S—LéOA—}S{-{d-) NCGS
160D-109(bY). T e

5.3-3 Review by the Youngsvﬂle Town Board uf Commissmners

(A.) Review — general. Followmg recelpt of eithera recommendatlon or receipt of the petitioner’s request
for a publie legislative hearmg, the Youngsville Town Board of Commissioners shall hold a publie
legislative hearing on the proposed amendment. The pubhc hearing shall be scheduled and conducted as
prov1ded by the Town Board of Comm1ssmners rules of proccdure

(B.) Notlﬂcatlon The Town Clcrk shaH prepare a public notice for a publie-legislative hearing as required
below NCGS 160D-601 and 160D-602).

5.3-3(B.)(1.) Method of procedurc for publishing notice of all amendments. Before adopting, amending,
or repealing any ordinance authorlzed by this Article, the Town Board of Commissioners shall hold a
public legislative hearing on it: ‘A notice of the publie legislative hearing shall be given once a week for
two successive calendar weeks in a newspaper having general circulation in the area. The notice shall be
published for the first time not less than 10 days nor more than 25 days before the date fixed for the
hearing. In computing such period, the day of publication is not to be included but the day of the hearing
shall be included,

11



5.3-3(B)(2)(a). In addition to the publication requirements for notices of public legislative hearings
required in Section 5.3-3(B)(1), the procedures adopted pursuant to this section provide that whenever
there is a zoning map amendment, the owner of that parcel of land as shown on the county tax listing, and
the owners of all parcels of land abutting that parcel of land as shown on the county tax listing, shall be
mailed a notice of a public haring on the proposed amendment by first class mail at the last address listed
for such owners on the county tax abstracts. Properties are considered “abutting” even if separated by a
street, railroad, or other transportation corridor, This notice must be deposited in the mail at least 10 but
not more than 25 days prior to the day of the public hearing. Except for a town-initiated zoning map
amendment, when an application is filed to request a zoning map amendment and that application is not
made by the owner of the parcel of land to which the amendment would apply, the applicant shall certify
to the Town Board of Commissioners that the owner of the parcel of land as shown on the county tax
listing has received actual notice of the proposed amendment and a copy of the notice of public hearing.
The person or persons required to provide notice shall certify to the: Town Board of Commissioners that
proper notice has been provided in fact, and such certlﬂcate shall be d ""med conclusive in the absence of
fraud. : )

5.3-3(B)(2)(b). The first-class mail notice required under subsection (a) of this sectlon shall not be
required if the zoning map amendment dircctly affects miore than 50 properties, owned. by a total of at
least 50 different property owners, and 1 wn elects to use the expanded published notice provided for
in this subsection. In this instance, a town may elect to cither malce the mailed notice provided for in
subsection (a) of this section or may as an alternaﬁve-eicct to pubhsh notice of the hearing as required by
G-5-160A-364 NCGS 160D-601, but prov1ded that cach:'adve'rtlsemcnt not be less than one-half a
newspaper page in size. The adveértisement shall only be effective for property owners who reside in the
area of general circulation of the neWspaper wh:ch lishes the notice, Property owners who reside
outside of the newspaper the address listed on the most recent property tax
histing for the affected prop ing to the provisions of subsection (a) of this
section.

5.3- 3(B J2H(by(L.) Actual not1cc of the':proposed amcndmcnt and a copy of the notice of publie
legislative hearing required undcr subsection {a) of this section shall be by any manner permitted under
G:ST NCGS 11¥'~'1'-'-Rule 4(}) If noti _c cannot with due dlllgence be achleved by personal delivery,

subsection applies onty t appl__ atlon to request a zoning map amcndment whcre the apphcatxon is not
made by the owner of the p rcel of land to which the amendment would apply. This subsection does not
apply to a Town-initiated zoning map amendment.

5.3-3(B)}(2)(c). When a zoning map amendment is proposed, the Town shall prominently post a notice of

the publie legislative hearing on the site proposed for rezoning or on an adjacent public street or highway
right-of-way. The notice shall be posted within the same time period specified for mailed notices of the
hearing. When multiple parcels are included within a proposed zoning map amendment, a posting on each
individual parcel is not required, but the Town shall post sufficient notices to provide reasonable notice to
interested persons.

12




(C.) Upon receipt of the recommendations from the Planning Board, the Town Board of Commissioners
shall hold a publie legislative hearing on the application for an amendment. Notice of the publie
legislative hearing shall be provided in accordance with the provisions for public hearings for
amendments as set forth in section 5.3-3(B) of this Ordinance and the North Carolina General Statutes

(BLC-G-8-160A-364;384;and-385 NCGS 160D-601 and 160D-602).

(D.) Action

(1.) Before acting on any proposed amendment, the Youngsville Town Board of Commissioners shall
consider any recommendation made by the Youngsville Planning Board, the recommendation submitted
by the Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator to the Plannmg Board, the comments made at the
publie-legislative hearing, and any other relevant addltional mformatlon

(E.) Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness.__-Pfi;bf'to adopting or rejecting any amendment, the
Town Board of Commissioners shall adopt a written statement describing whether its actions are both
consistent with the “Town Plan 2040 - Comprehensive Land Use & Master Plan,”. adopted March 14,
2019, including subsequent amendments adopted by the Town Board of Commissioners of the Town of
Youngsville and other applicable adopted plans %hat—ts—appheable -and shall state why and how the action
taken is considered to be reasonable and'in the public interest. Such statements may be incorporated into
ordinances amending the Official Zoning Ma_p (G-8-160A-383 NCGS_ 160D-605).

(F.) Conflict of Interest: ‘A Town Bdérd of Comnﬁésionefé 'xiiefhbér shall not vote on any zoning map
(rezoning) or text amendment where the outcome of the maiter bemg considered is reasonably likely to
have a direct, substantial, and readily 1dcnt1ﬁablc financial impact on the member, or if the landowner of
the property sublect toa rezomnsr pct}tlon or thc apphcant for a text amendment is a person with whom
the member: hasa close famlhal busmess or other 1dentxﬁable relationship (NCG-S160A-381(d)
NCGS 160D 109(a)).

5.4-3 General Requlrements

{F.) Unless conscnted to by the apphcant in writing, the Town of Youngsville may not require, enforee, or
incorporate into the permlt regutrements any condition or requirement not authorized by otherwise
applicable law, including taxes impact fees, building design elements, driveway-related improvements, or
other unauthorized limitations on the development or use of land.

**Note: Adding this section will require the numbers for the subsequent sections to be shifted down.

(F.)(2.) A reduction of up to 25 percent in the number of parking spaces required for the use provided that
the proposed development is located within % mile of either the Town-CeaterDisteiet-(TC) Main Street
{MS} District or the Mixed-Use (MU-1 and MU-2) Districts and on-street parking is available.

13



(K.) No variances ot eenditional special use permits may be issued for development on property that is
subject to a Conditional Zoning ordinance.

5.4-4 Application Procedure.

(B.) The application and supporting materials shall be reviewed by the Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision
Administrator in accordance with its their procedures for reviewing applications for eenditional special
use permits prior to the meeting of the Planning Board at which the application is to be considered. The
recommendations and comments of the Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator shall be reported
to the Planning Board. In addition, the Youngsville Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator shall
evaluate Conditional Zoning applications on the basis of criteria f; eeﬂd*&enal special use permits set
out in Article 7 and shall submit said report at the public hearings on'said applications.

(D.) Upon receipt of the recommendations from the Planning Board, the Town Board of Commissioners
shall hold a publie legislative hearing on the applic n for Conditional Zomng Notice of the publie
legislative hearing shall be provided in accordance w1th the provisions for pubhc hearmgs for zoning map
amendments as set forth in Section 5.3 3(B) of this Ordina and the North Carolina’ Generai Statutes

(NCGS-160A-384 NCGS 160D-601).

(E.) The Town Board of Commissioners’ cons1deratmn'o' : n_apphcatl for Conditional Zoning is
legislative in nature, and the Board of Commissioners ma nsider any relevant information in its
deliberations, including:t the criteria’ for.issuing eeﬂéheﬁal. gecial use permits specified in Article 7,
Consideration shall be glven to adopte land use pi for the area, small area plans, corridor plans, anéd
other land use policy documents, and ‘uses. The Town Board of Commissioners may
adopt or not adopt a Condltlonal Zomng ordmance or may contmue its consideration of the application as
T ppropnatc - '

findings of the Town Board of Commissioners are not required for action on an apphcatlon
for Conditional Zomng However; a statement analyzing the reasonableness of the proposed rezoning
shall be prepared for'each conditional use district,

14




Amendments to Article 6
6.1-2 Provisions that may not be varied by the Board of Adjustment.
(A.) With respect to any eenditienal special use zoning permit adopted pursuant to this Ordinance.

(B.) Which would modify, alter, change, or suspend the conditions set forth in Article 10 of this
Ordinance for a cenditional special use.

6.1-3 Application

(E.) Once the application is accepted by the Planning, Zoning, & Subd1v1swn Administrator, the request
shall be schedunled for consideration at an public e vxdentlam hearmg by the Board of Adjustment

6.1-4 Action by the Board of Adjustment

(A.) An publie evidentiary public hearing shall be hcld on the rcquested vanancc w1th1n thirty-six (36)
days of receipt of a completed application 5 .

(D.) In considering the application, the Board'sof Adjustment shaII review the application materials, the
staff recommendation, the general purpose and standards set forth in thxs Adrticle for the granting of
variances, and all testirnony and ev1dcnce recewed by the B _d at the ﬁ’d-b-l-}e evidentiary hearing.

(E.) After conducting thcpubhe evidéhﬁiag hearing, the Board of Adjustment may:
2) Con_du@f' anaddxtmnaipa—bhe év'fl_;i_entiary hearmg on the request; or

6.1-7 Effective date of decision.-iAt_l_y dccisidn made by the Board of Adjustment regarding a variance
shall be reduced fo'writing and reflect the Board’s decision of contested facts and their application to the
applicable standards: The written dcc:smn shall be signed by the Chair and shall be filed with the Town
Clerk. The effective date of decision shall be upon the date it is filed with the Town Clerk. The decision
shall be delivered by the Plan_m_ng Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator or their designee via personal
delivery, electronic mail, or by first class mail to the applicant, property owner, and to any person who
has submitted a written request for a copy prior to the close of the publie evidentiary hearing on the case.

6.2-3 Parties who may file an appeal. Any person who has standing under NCGS 160A-393(d) 160D-
1402(c) or the Town of Youngsville may bring an appeal to the Board of Adjustment.

15



6.2-7 Action by the Board of Adjustment,

(A.) Upon receiving the appeal application, the Board of Adjustment shall hold an publie evidentiary
hearing on the appeal. Notice of the hearing shall be as provided in Section 6.1-4. The person whose
decision is being appealed shall transmit to the Board of Adjustment all documents and exhibits
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is being taken. Said information shall also be
provided to the applicant and to the owner of the property that is subject to the appeal, if such person(s) is
not the applicant.

(B.) The publie evidentiary hearing shall be conducted in accordance with rules of procedure of the Board
of Adjustment and in accordance with the North Carolina General Statutes. All persons providing
evidence at the hearing shall be sworn or affirmed by either th' hair.or Clerk to the Board. The official
who made the decision that is being appealed shall be present at ‘the ing as 2 witness. The appellant
shall not be limited at the hearing to matters stated in the notice of appca If any party or the Town would
be unduly prejudiced by the presentation of matters not_ resented in the notice of appeal, the Board shall

continue the publie evidentiary hearing.

(C.) Either after the public cvidentiary hé'éi‘ing orata subséijf: ‘continuation meeting to be held
within 30 days of the close of the publie e déntlag[ hearing, the Board of Adjustment shall adopt an

order reversing, affirming (wholly or partly), or modifying the confest action. The Board of Adjustment’s
decision shall be based upon competent, materxal and sub ntlal evider

(E. ) The applicant, the T own of Youn ville, and anv erson who would have standing to appeal the

(1) Obwctmns may be made to the.Board of Adwstmcnt The Chair shall rule on anv objections and their

rulings mav:-bc appealed to thé-full board :

(G.) Any de(:lsxon ade by the Board of Adjustmcnt regarding an appeal shall be reduced to writing and
reflect the Board’s declsmn of contested facts and their application to the applicable standards. The
written decision shall be: mgncd the Chair and shall be filed with the Town Clerk. The decision shall be
delivered by the Planning, Zom g, & Subdivision Administrator or their designee via personal delivery,
electronic mail, or by first class mail to the applicant, property owner, and te any person who has
submitted a written request for a copy prior to the close of the publie evidentiary hearing on the case. The
person making such deliveries shall certify that the deliveries have been made.

16




Amendments to Article 7

7.1-1 Approval Required. No person shall undertake any activity subject to this Ordinance without first
obtaining approval from the Town. Upon approval of the activity by the Town, a permit shall be issued
for the approved activity. Certain permits are issued by agencies other than the Town of Youngsville, as
noted below; all other permits are issued by the Town. In any case where an application is made to
operate more than one (1) use on a property, the Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator shall
determine which use or uses shall be the principal use or uses and the type of permit that is required:
zoning compliance permit, Genditional Special Use Permit, or Use Listed with Additional Standards.

(C.} Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy — Upon completion of work or activity undertaken pursuant to
a development approval, the Town of Youngsville will issue a certificate of compliance if the staff finds
that the completed work complies with all applicable State and local Iaws and with the terms of the permit

approval. The Franklin County Building Inspections Dcpartment %SSH%S—H-pGﬂ—ﬁﬁﬂLbHﬂdH}g—}ﬂSpéG—t—lﬁ&S
and-site-plan-complience-approval-by-the Tews will issue the Certificate of Occupancy upon the final

building inspection and issuance of a Certificate of Comphance by the Town.™

7.3-2 Building permit expiration. The Franklin County Building Inspections Department may void a
building permit for a project within the ToWn s jurisdiction if :ﬂié authorized work has not begun within
180-days six (6) months after issuance of the penmt or 1f work was commenced but was discontinued for
a period of one year. : 2

7.3-3 Unless Drowded otherw1se by laW all development approva}s madc pursuant to this Article attach to
and run with the land. ;

7.5-2 PIan ubmlttal
(A ) Filmg of apphcatlon. An apphcatlon for a zomng perm1t may be ﬁled by {h&GWHEH)f{-he-pfepeFB‘

appheat-leﬂ the Iandowner, a ]essee or person hoidmg an ogtlon or contract to purchase or }case land, or an

authorized agent of the landowner. Wherc an agent files the application, the agent shall provide

documentation that the owner of th'é:' pproperty has authorized the filing of the application. The application

fora Zomng peumt sha]l be ﬁled w1th the Pianmng, Zomng, & Subdivision Administrator es-aform
aRRin o & Sy ator on a form they provide.

[This space intentionally left blank.]

17



7.8 Conditional Special Use Approvals

7.8-1 Purpose. Cenditienal Special uses are established to provide for the location of those uses which
are generally compatible with other land uses permitted in a zoning district but which, because of their
unique characteristics or potential impacts on the surrounding neighborhood and the Town of Youngsville
as a whole, require individual consideration of their location, design, configuration, and/or operation at
the particular location proposed. Such individual consideration may also identify cause(s) for the
imposition of individualized conditions in order to ensure that the use is appropriate at a particular
location and to ensure protection of the public health, safety, and welfare. Any use identified in Section
10.2 of this Ordinance as a eonditional special use in a zoning district shall not be permitted without the
approval of the Board of Commissioners in accordance with the requlrements and procedures set forth in
this section 78, '

7.8-2 Pre-application conference procedure. Every apphcant fora eeﬂdmenawl special use zoning permit
is required to meet with the Planning, Zoning, & Subdmsmn Administrator i "'_a pre-application
conference prior to the submittal of a request for approval of a eonditional pecml use. The purposes of
this conference ate to provide additional information regardmg the revi -and assistance in the
preparation of the application.

7.8-3 Plan submittal.

(A.) Filing of application. An.application fora eeada&eﬂal pecial use:zem-ng permit may be filed by the
owner of the property or by an ager tspemﬁcally_f'“ uthoriz | by the owner to file such an application.
Where an agent files the application, the agent shall provide documentation that the owner of the property
has authorized the filing 'of the application. The apph tion for a conditional special use zoning permit
shall be filed w1th the PIannihg, Zomn' & SublelSl n Administrator on a form provided-by-the

1 ey growd

(B.) Info matlon required. Each apphcation fora eenetmeﬁal- pecial use gening permit shall contain all
information identified as requlred by the Plannmg, Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator. The application
shall be accompaﬁ ed by an electronic file copy plus at least two paper copies of a Site Development Plan
containing all 1nformat10n require Section 7.7 of this Ordinance.

7.8-4 Staff review.

(A.) Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision Administrater review. Following submittal of the application
and Site Development Plans for the conditienal special use, they shall be reviewed by the Planning,
Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator for compliance with the requirements of Section 7.8 of this
Ordinance.

18




7.8-5 Formal review.

(A.) Publie Evidentiary hearing. Upon receipt of a notice from the Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision
Administrator of the applicant requesting an publie evidentiary hearing on the application and Site
Development Plan for a eenditional special use zening permit, an publie evidentiary hearing shall be
scheduled. An public evidentiary hearing before the Youngsville Board of Commissioners shall be held
for all cenditional special use zoning permit applications.

(B.) Action by the Youngsvilie Board of Commissioners.

(1.) The Youngsville Board of Commissioners shall consider the réiiﬁeéf within three (3) days of
receiving information regarding the eonditional special use zeﬁmg pcumt application from the Planning,
Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator. B

(2.) The Youngsville Board of Commissioners, after conductmg the quasaad*eta%—pubhe evidentiary
hearing, may: (1) deny approval; (2) continue the apphcatlon pendmg submittal of addltlonal information;
or (3) approve the proposed eonditional pec:lal use ze&mg pcmnt i

{3.) The decision on the eenditionat pemal use zemﬂg permit apphcatlon shall be by a simple majority
vote of those members of the Youngsvﬂie Board of Comm1551oners present at the meeting at which the
action is taken. :

(4.) The minutes of the Yoiingsville Board of Comﬁ:us's'ioners shall state if the proposed eenditional

special use meets or does not meet each of the condxtmns set forth in Section 7.8-5(D), the standards set
forth in Articie 10 of this Ordinance for the ploposed eeﬂét&ana{ special use, and ali other requirements
sel forth by this Ordmance for the "proposecl eend*:&eﬁa} pe(:lal use.

" [This space intentionally left blank.]

19



(D.) Additienal Conditions. In granting the eonditienal special use zoning permit, the Board of
Commissioners may desighate only those conditions, in addition and in connection therewith, as will, in
its opinion, assure that the use in its proposed location will be harmonious with the area in which it is
proposed to be located, with the spirit of this Ordinance, and clearly in keeping with the public welfare.
All such additional conditions shall be entered into the minutes of the meeting at which the conditional
special use zening permit is granted, on the eonditional special use zening permit itself, and on the
approved plans. All specific conditions shall run with the land and shall be binding on the original
applicants, their heirs, successors, and assignees. The conditional special use zoning permit, as approved,
shall be recorded by the Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator with the Register of Deeds for
the county in which the subject property is located M&EWGSH—EHB& The goning permit
recipient shall be responsible for paying the recording fee. No bull mg ‘permit shall be issued for the
subject property until the recording is made. :

The Town of Youngsville may not require, enforce, or 1ncorb'01:a ¢ into the permit requirements any
conditions authorized by otherwise applicable law, 1nc1udmg taxes, 1mpact fees, building design elements,

driveway-related improvements, or other unauthonzo _umtatlons on the development or use of land.

Only those conditions approved by the Town of Youngsville and consented to bv the petitioner in writing
may be incorporated into the permit requirements. -

7.8-6 Transfer of approval. A eeﬂdﬁ+oﬂa4 .'pccxa | use approval Isnot transferable from one preperty to
another but is transferred to a subsequent owner of the property to th].‘l applied,

7.8-8 Public otlﬁc.itlon Notic of public v1dent1m hearings or public meetings required under this
section for eeﬂdtﬁoﬁa}_ pecial use’ approvals shall be provided in accordance with the requirements
cstablished by the North.Carolina General Statutes for public hearing notification. In addition, the
Planning, Zoning, & Sub_d' ision Administrator shall prepare a public notice as described herein belew
which indicates the official recéipt of an application and Site Development Plan for a conditionat special
use zoniag permit approval. This will serve to encourage public involvement in development projects in
Youngsville. The notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place at Town Hall, on the Town’s website, or a
combination of these two, at least five days prior to the date on which the application is to be considered.
This notice for publication shall include the following.

(A.) Brief description of the eenditional special use project proposed;

(C.) Contact information for staff receiving comments concerning the proposed conditional special use.

20




7.8-9 Project phasing. If a project approved as a conditional special use is to be developed in phases, a
master plan for the entire development site must be approved by the Youngsville Board of
Commissioners at the same time and in the same manner the eenditionsl special use zoniag permit is
constdered.

{A.) Final plans for phases of the conditional special use may be submitted in stages and shall be
approved by the Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator prov1ded that the following requirements
are met:

(5.) The phasing shall be consistent with the traffic cucu}atlon dramage and utilities plan for the entire
master plan for the conditional special use.

(6.) Each phase of the eenditional special use must comply with any and all condmons attached to the
approval of the eonditional special use %eamg permit by the Youngsvﬂle Board of Commxssmners

7.8-10 Variances. In issuing eonditional special u's:é'éeﬂ%ﬂg permits; the Youngsville Board of
Commissioners may prescribe dimensional requlrements (hc1ght setbacks etc.) that are different from the
requirements of the correspondmg general zoning classxﬁcatmn, and may prescribe development and
design standards that are different from those set out in Arncle 9; prov;ded that any request for a
modification to a dlmensmnal requirément or development and design standard that is less restrictive than
would be applicable for the underlymg general zoning. - classification must be specifically described in any
notices required for the publie vxdentlag hearmg on the eenditienal special use zoping permit
application, and must bc set out separatcly in any: Ordinance issuing said eenditional special use zoning
permit, together with an explanatlon of the reason for the modification. Except as modified pursuant to
this paragraph all standards and rcqu1rements applicable to the underlying general zoning district must be
met. Variances to the standards estabhshed by any eenditienal special use permit shall not be allowed, per
Article 6 of this. Ordmance

7.8-11 Appeals. An appcal from. the dcms:on of the Youngsville Board of Commissioners regarding a
conditional special use apphcation and Site Development Plan may be made by an aggrieved party and
shall be made to the Superior Court of the county in which the subject property is located in the nature of
certiorari, Any such petition to the Superior Court shall be filed with the court no later than 30 days after
a written copy of the decision of the Board of Commissioners is received by the applicant.

[This space intentionally lefi blank.]

21



7.8-12 Permit validity. Approvals of a conditienal special use zening permit application and Site
Development Plan shall be valid for one year from the date of approval by the Youngsville Board of
Commissioners. Failure to initiate construction, or otherwise begin the permitted use, within this time
shall render the eenditional special use approval null and void. The Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision
Administrator may grant a single extension of this time period of up to six (6) months upon submittal by
the application of sufficient justification for the extension. Permits for the phased development of a
eenditional special use project shall remain valid for the time approved by the Youngsville Board of
Commissioners as part of the eenditienal special use approval of the master plan for the cenditional

special use,

7.8-13 Failure to Comply with Plans or Conditions. In the event of the failure to comply with the plans
approved by the Board of Commissioners or with any other. ¢ ions imposed upon the eenditional
special use goning permit, the zening permit shall thercup___n 1nnned1ately become void and of no effect.
No building permits for further construction or certificates of occupancy undcr this eenditional special use
goning permit shall be issued. If a failure to compl_ with conditions in a eenditienal special use zening
permit occurs after occupancy, the owner, lessee, or.other responsible person shall_be notified in writing
of the violation. No earlier than five days after the 1ece115t of the written notice, the bod
conditional special use zoning permit may 1ssue a finding’ of fac 'hat a violation of the. requxremcnts of
this Ordinance exists. H such finding of. is made, it shal awful for any person, firm, or
corporation to continue the eenditional special 1 se. until the resp nsible party makes the necessary
corrections and the Board of Commissioners. conducts 2 pubhc hearmg and finds that the violation no
longer exists.

7.13-1 Purpose. Thc zomng vested rlg___t isa nght wl is establish d pursuant to N-G-Gen-Stat-—see:
+60A-3851 NCGS 160D—108 o unde ake and complete the development and use of property under the
terms and conditions of an approve c1ﬁc develepmeﬁt vesting plan. Upoen issuance of a building
permit, th_eff_;z p1rat1on prov1s1ons of N NCGS 160D-403(f) shall apply, except
that a bmidmg permit shall niot expir __or be revoked because of the running of time while a zoning vested
right under this seetion713 Arti g tanding. Obtaining Site Development Plan appreval or
Preliminary Plat Subdivision approval through the vested rights procedure gives the applicant the right to
start construcnon of the development as approved within two (2) years of approval. A vested right is
obtained:

(A.) Automatically when eit _ conditional zoning or a cenditionpal special use permit is granted by
virtue of Board of Commissioners approval.

(B.) automatically when a subdivision plat is approved, and the plat recorded in accordance with the
procedure set forth in this Ordinance; and

22




(C.) automatically when the Board of Commissioners approves a site-specific develepment vesting plan
submitted by a developer in conjunction with an application for a zoning permit with vested rights as
described below.

7.13-6 Additional restrictions and requirements, In granting a zoning permit with vested rights, the
Board of Commissioners may impose such additional restrictions and requirements upon the permit as it
may deem necessary in order that the purpose and intent of this Ordinance are served, public welfare
secured, and substantial justice done. Approval of a site-specific development vesting plan with the
condition that a variance or modification be obtained shall not confer a vested right unless and until the
necessary variance or modification is obtained. If all requirements and conditions are accepted by the
applicant, the Board of Commissioners shall authorize the issuance of the permit; otherwise the permit
shall be denied. Any permit so authorized shall remain vested _fpr two:(2) years from the date of the action
granting the permit. No change or amendment to any zo_z_l_i__t_l'g' permit with vested rights shall be made
except after public hearing and except as provided for in. ﬂiis Ordinance for the original issuance of such
permit. If, at the time of consideration of a proposed nge or amendment, the permit or proposed
change or amendment could not be lawfully made undcr Ordinance conditions ex1stmg at that time, the
proposed change or amendment shall be denied. In addlnon in no case shall there be’ an extension of the
two-year time period for which the development right i is vested Nothmg herein shall cxempt plans related
to the permit from subsequent reviews and approvais to ensure compllance with the terms and conditions
of the original approval, provided that such I‘EVIGWS and approvals are not inconsistent with the original
approvals. ' :

7.13-8 Permit validity. A zomng rlght that has been vestcd as prov1ded in Sectlon 7.13 shall remain
vested for a period of two’ years from thc date the pen:mt is issued. This vesting shall not be extended by
any amendments or modlﬁcatmns toa sﬁc-spcmﬁc develepme&t vesting plan unless expressly provided
by the approving. authonty at the time the amendment or modification is approved. A zoning permit,
conditional special usc pcnmt or subdlwsmn approval shall not expire ot be reveked because of the
running of time while a zoning vested right under this section is outstanding. A vested right shall
terminate under the termination conditions as specified in subsection 7.13-6 of this Ordinance.

7.13-10 Status dt explratmn of term A right which has been vested shall terminate at the end of the
two-year vesting period with respect to buildings and uses for which no valid building permit applications
have been filed. Upon issuance of a building permit, the provisions of G-S—+60A-48-and 160A 422
NCGS 160D-403(c) and 160D-403(f) shall apply except that a building permit shall not expire or be
revoked because of the running of time while a vested right under this Article is outstanding. Any
development constructed pursuant to a zoning permit with vested rights for which the vested term has
expired and which is not in conformance with all the terms of this Ordinance because of changes made in
the provisions of this Ordinance, including the zoning map, after the issuance of the permit shall be
subject to the provisions of this Ordinance relating to nonconformities the same as any other
nonconformity.

23



7.14-2 Notice procedure. The following guidelines detail the notification procedure to be followed for
public hearings required by this Article unless otherwise set forth in this Article. Failure to follow
procedures set forth in this section, other than those required by the North Carolina General Statutes, shall
not affect the validity of any action taken at a public hearing or public meeting (N-C-G-8--160A-364;-384;
and-385 NCGS 160D-601).

7.14-3 Special notice requirements for telecommunication towers/structures. For any publie
evidentiary hearing for eonditienal special use applications for telecommunication towers as required by
Section 10.2-14 hereinafter, additional notice and public hearing requirements shall be provided as set
forth in Section 10.2-14 of this Ordinance.

7.15-1 Authorization and applicability.

(A.) The North Carolina General Statutes authorize the use of dcvelopmcnt agreements for the
development of land in accordance with the criteri: and procedure established in sections G-5—166A-

400-20-through-G-S—160A-40032 NCGS 160D-1001 through 160D 1012

7.15-3 Procedure - entering iny K:(levelop'li}ent agreements,

(B.) The development agreement an ihc Planning Board recommendation shall be published for public
inspection and notification ade in accordance with the provisions of G=5—360A-364 NCGS
160D-601.

7.15-4 Administration of development agreements and termination for material breach.

(C.) If the developer fails to cure the material breach within the time given, then the Town of Youngsville
may unilaterally terminate or modify the development agreement. In accordance with G-8-160A~
400.27¢C) NCGS 160D-1008, the notice of termination or modification may be appealed to the Board of
Adjustment in the manner provided by G-5—160A-388(b) NCGS 160D-403.

24




Amendments to Article 8

8.4 District development standards and permitted uses listed for each district.

3) Conditional Special Use — Where a use is listed in a given district, upon satisfaction of the
requirements established in Section 10.2 of this Ordinance, the symbol €2 “SP” is entered in the
corresponding district column for the specific use.

8.5 Overlay Districts

3) Genditiensal Special Use is listed in a given district, upon satlsfaction of the requirements established in
Section 10.2 of this Ordinance, the symbol 22 “SP” is entered n the corresponding district column for
the specific use. 8

8.5-2 Scenic Corridor Overlay (SCO)

(C.)(2.)(b.)(1i1.) Buildings used primarily for agrlcultural and/or equesman-related activities may be built
in the scenic corridor easement upon approval by the Board of Commissioners as a Geﬂdt&eﬂ&} special
use. Parking shall be located behind the building, shall not be Iocated within the scenic corridor eascment,
and shall be buffered from the scenic comdor :The Board of Comlmssxoncrs shall consider the following
items in making the decision to allow aforcsald buxldmgs in the scemc easement.

8.5-3 Heavy Industry Overlay (HIO)

(D.) Conditional Spec:al usc penmts arc required for all ‘hazardous mdustr:es required.

[Thrs space intentionally left blank.f

25



Amendments to Article 10

Article 10 Heading ~ USES WITH ADDITIONAL STANDARDS AND GONBRIHONAL SPECIAL
USES

10.2 Conditional Special Uses

10.2-1 Purpose. Certain uses may wish to locate in the Town of Youngsville and its area of jurisdiction,
which, due to their size and/or operation, have impacts that could ely impact neighboring uses or
the commumty as a whole, Due to thc potentlal 1mpacts of these Use thcy 1nust meet certain condltlons

tclecommumcatlo tower

(3.) The Town may elect to retain outside consultants or professional services to review a cenditional
special use application for a telccommumcatlon tower and to make recommendations on relevant issues
including, but not limited to, verlﬁcatlon of the applicant’s due diligence, analysis of alternatives,
conditions of approval and compliance with state and federal rules and regulations at the applicant’s
expense.

[This space intentionally left blank. |

26




(4.) In addition to the notice requirements found elsewhere in this Ordinance, the applicant for a
cendittonal special use permit for a telecommunication tower shall be required to notify by regular mail
all property owners within a one-quarter mile (1,320 feet) radius of the proposed location of any public
hearing on the application at least ten days prior to the hearing. The Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision
Administrator may require the applicant to conduct a crane or balloon test to simulate the height of the
proposed tower. Notice of the dates and times of such tests shall be mailed by the applicant to all property
owners within a one-quarter mile (1,320 feet) radius of the proposed location at least ten days prior to the
primary test date. The notice shall state primary and alternate test dates, as well as a range of dates for
testing in the event of extended periods of inclement weather. The Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision
Administrator shall review and approve the sufficiency of the notice prior to mailing and, as part of its
their application, the applicant will be required to submit a certificate of mailing and attach a copy of the
notice and a list of the addresses to which it was sent. In the event the applicant shall seek to increase the
height of a proposed tower, or move its location mere than SO'fEéf Iéteraily from that stated in the original
notices, additional notice shall be required to be given in accordance w;th the above provisions and all
time periods shall run from the date of suppiemental notlﬁcatlon :

(7.) 1t is the policy of the Town to encourage co- locatlon and the use of ex1st1ng structures where
appropriate. In furtherance of that pohcy objective, the followmg prov1s10ns shall apply to an application
for a eenditienal special use permit for'a telecommumcatmn tower

(a.) A conditional special use for a telecommumcatlon tower shali not be approved unless the tower is
designed structurally, e]ectncaliy, mechamcally, and in alf’ respects to accommodate at least three users.
An application shall not be deemed complete unnl the apphcant submlts

(c.) A cenditional special use apphcatlon for a telecommumcatlon tower shall not be approved if an
electric transmission tower is located above, or no less than 25 feet below, the ground elevation of and
within th_e s_earch radius and/or ring of a proposed telecommunication tower, unless the applicant can
demonstrate one or more of the following:

(d)A eeﬂéitienalféprecial use application for a telecommunication tower shall not be approved uniess the
equipment planned fdf:'the_ propose'id_irtower cannot be accommodated on existing or approved
telecommunication towers, buildings, or alternative structures more than 30 feet in height (after first
considering electric transmission towers) within a one-quarter mile (1,320 feet) radius of the proposed
telecommunication tower due to one or more of the following reasons:

(16.) In cases where an applicant is required to perform an environmental assessment (EA) or an
environmental impact statement (EIS) under the National Environmental Policy Act or the National
Historic Preservation Act, such EA or EIS shall be submitted as part of its their application for a
conditional special use permit. An application for a conditienal special use permit will not be deemed
complete until any required EA or BIS has been submitted to the Town.

27



(28.) A eonditional special use approval for a telecommunication tower shall become null and void if the
facility is not constructed and placed in service within two years of the date of approval provided,
however, that the conditienal special use approval may be extended one time for six months if substantial
construction has commenced before the end of the initial year.

28




Amendments to Article 11

11.5-3 Performance guarantee in lieu of installation of plant materials.

(A.) If, at the time of a request for a Certificate of Compliance, the required planting areas are not
complete, the developer may provide a performance guarantee in accordance with N-G.G-S-160A-372
NCGS 160D-804(g) guaranteeing the installation of the plant materials if the following conditions are
met;

11.18-2 Penalties.

(A.) Tree disturbance prior to permit approval. The penalty for the removal of or damage to trees, prior to
the issuance of a tree disturbance permit, shall be a civil pcnalty of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) per
acre or prorated fraction thereof (i.e., the civil penalty for a site of 0.35 acres that is cleared prior to
approval or prior to the issuance of a tree disturbance penmt is three thousand five hundred dollars
($3,500.00)). Additionally, the Town of Youngsvillg, under G-S-—160A-458.5 NCGS 160D-921, may
deny a building permit to any landowner who clears: land in anticipation of dcvelopment in violation of
this section for up to three (3) years after completion of. the timber harvest. If it is determined that the
timber harvest was a “willful violation” of this Ordmancc,_ then the Town of Youngsville reserves the
right to deny development approvals for a period of two 2) y¢aﬁs.'fbllowing the timber harvest.

29



Amendments to Article 16
16.1-2 Exempt land divisions,

(A.) Divisions of land exempt. In accordance with NeG-Gen-Stat—see—160A-376 NCGS 160D-802, the
following divisions of land are not included within the definition of “subdivision” and are not subject to
the Town’s subdivision regulations.

(5.) The subdivision or recombination of land by public utilities.

In case of a conflict between this description of exempt subdivisions and state law (MEC-Gen-Stat-seex
160A-376-or any-other-suceessor-statute NCGS 160D-802), stat | w shall control.

16.1-5 Approval required.

(C.) Presale contracts. In accordance with NCGS 160D 807(b), the provisions of

this section shall not prohibit any owners or s thelr agent from entcrmg into contracts to sell or lease by

for cnforcement in Article 23 of thzs Ordi nance, any person who being the owner or agent of the owner
of any land locatéd within the Town 3 Jurlsdac'tmn subdivides their land in violation of the ordinance or
transfers or sells lank by reference t .exhibition of, or any other use of a plat showing a subdivision of
the land before the pia_f'has been pr¢ @rly approved under such ordinance and recorded in the office of the
appropriate register of deeds, shal 0 be deemed guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor. The description of
metes and bounds in the instrument of transfer or other document used in the process of selling or
transferring land shall not excmpt the transaction from these penaltics. The Town may bring an action for
injunction of any illegal subdivision, transfer, conveyance, or sale of land, and the courts shall, upon
appropriate findings, issue an injunction and order requiring the offending party to comply with this
Ordinance. Building permits required pursuant to G-8—160A-417 NCGS 160D-1110 may be denied for
lots that have been illegally subdivided. In addition to other remedies, the Town may institute any
appropriate action or proceedings to prevent the unlawful subdivision of land; to restrain, correct, or abate
the violation; or to prevent any illegal act of conduct per N-C-G-S—160A-375¢a) NCGS 160D-807(a).

-

30




16.1-9 Required improvements. Improvement requirements shall be fulfilled, or their complete
performance guaranteed in accordance with Nerth-Carelina-General-Statate 160A-372 NCGS 160D-804
before a final plat shall be approved by the Planning, Zoning, & Subdivision Administrator.

(B.) Guarantee in lieu of construction of improvements. In lieu of completion of construction of the
required improvements and utilities prior to final plat approval, the property owner may provide a
performance guarantee in accordance with Nerth-Carelina-General Statute-160A-372 160D-804(g). The
performance guarantee shall be in an amount equal to 125% of the estimated cost of the installation of the
required improvements, as determined by the Town. The performance guarantee shall secure the
completion of construction of the improvements shown on the approved preliminary plat and as detailed
within the approved construction plans. The performance guarantee shall remain in full force and effect
until such time as the construction of improvements and installation of utilities are completed and
accepted by the Town of Youngsville. Failure to maintain thc requlred performance guarantee shall result
in the revocation of the approval of the preliminary pIat and any permits issued as a result of the
preliminary plat approval. The performance guarantec ‘shall be automatzcaliy renewed unless all parties
agree not to renew it at least sixty (60) days prior to.its scheduled expiration date: A temporary
construction easement permitting the Town of Youngsvﬂle or its designee(s) to acccss the property for the
purpose of constructlng/mstalhng the guaranteed unprovcmcnts is rcqun‘ed to be p1ov1ded with the

be vahd and shall bmd toall successwe owners untll the guaranteed improvements have been
constructed/installed and approved or accepted by the Town. Said temporary construction easement shall
be recorded at the office of the Franklm County Reg1ster of Deeds, w1th recording fees to be paid by the
apphicant/landowner.

31



Amendments to Article 17

17.6 Exempt Signs

(T.) Fence wraps displaying signage when affixed to perimeter fencing at a construction site until the
certificate of occupancy is issued for the final portion of any construction site or 24 months from the time
the fence wrap was installed provided it contains only advertising sponsored by parties directly involved
in the construction project in accordance with G-S—160A-38+G) NCGS 160D-907.

32




Amendments to Article 18
18.1 Statutory authorization, findings of fact, purpose, and objectives,
Section A. Statutory authorization.

The Legislature of the State of North Carolina has, in Part 6, Article 21 of Chapter 143; Parts-3,-5;-and-8
efArticle19-of Chapter-160A;-and Article 8 of Chapter 160A; and Articles 7, 9, 11, and 13 of Chapter

160D of the North Carolina General Statutes, delegated to local governmental units the responsibility to
adopt reguiations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare.

33



Amendments to Article 19

19.2 Purpose and aunthority

The Town Board of Commissioners of the Town of Youngsville is authorized to adopt this Ordinance

pursuant to North Carolina law, including but not limited to, Article 14, Section 5 of the Constitution of

North Carolina; Nerth-Garelina-General Statutes143-214.7 NCGS 143-214.7 and rules promulgated by

the Environmental Management Commission thereunder; Session Law 2004-163; Chapter 160A-174;

185 NCGS Chapter 160A-174 and 160A-185; Chapter H3,-Article4 NCGS Chapter 113, Article 4

(Sedimentanon and Poilutlon ControI) Article 21, Part 6 (Floodway Regulation); Chapter 160A-Artiele
e : opmen NCGS Chapter 160D (Local Planning and Development
1-Space) Article 13, Part 1

egulatlon[ :
{Acquisition of Open Snace) and NCGS 160D 804

34




Amendments to Article 22

22.3-1 Lawfully established nonconforming lots. Lawfully established nonconforming lots having one
or more dimensional nonconformities may be used for any permitted or eenditional special uses allowed
in the zoning district in which the lot is located provided that any structure or expansion/addition to an
existing structure proposed for the use meets all applicable dimensional and numerical requirements and
all applicable procedures arc followed. Such lots may be recombined with adjeining lots to increase the
extent of their conformity provided new nonconformities are not created.

22.3-2 Structures, inclading signs. Structures of any type having one:or more dimensional
nonconformitics may be used for any permitted or conditional goéiél use allowed in the zoning district in
which the structure is located, and, upon any change in use, shall comply with the landscaping, buffering,
and parking requirements of Articles 11 and 12. Structures may be cxpandod or enlarged, provided the
extent of the nonconformity is not increased or new nonconform1tles are not created by expansion or
enlargement. Expansions, enlargements, or reconstructlon of such structures. to an extent equal to or
greater than fifty percent of appraised value, shall'require such structures to meet all applicable
dimensional and numerical requirements, except den31ty, which may be retained at the prior
nonconforming level but not increased. For the purpose of this scction, the value of any expansions,
enlargements, or reconstruction of such structures over a three -year period shall be cumulated in
calculating the fifty percent threshold. A structure undergomg renovation (defined in Article 3) having a
renovation cost equal to or greater than ﬁﬂy perccnt of the structure’s appraised value shall not be subject
to the above provisions but shall be required: to meet the Iandscapmg, buffering, and parking provisions of
Articles 11 and 12. S1gns shall also comply W1th thc provmons of Amcle 17 Section 17.13 of this
Ordinance.

22.4-1 Discontinuation of ﬁoiicpnfet_i;ﬁing uses. A nonconforming use is allowed to continue unless the
use is disconfinued for any reason for a period of 730 or more consecutive days, and there are no
substannai good faith efforts to re—estabhsh the use dunng this period. Obtaining permits to maintain the
existing use or significant contmuous efforts to market the property for sale or lease for the existing use
{e.g., MLS: hstmg, realtor contract etc. ) shall be regarding as substantial good faith efforts. A
nonconformmg use shall be deemed discontinued after a period of 1095 consecutive days regardless of
any substantial good faith efforts to re- -establish the use. Thereafter, the structure or property associated
with the use may be’ uscd only for conformmg uses. Where multiple nonconforming uses occupy the same
premises, the reallocation of any comibination of the nonconforming uses shall be allowable provided
there is no net increase iti"thé_ g_r_dsé‘ area of the combined nonconforming uses. Conditional Special uses
discontinued for a period of 730 or more consecutive days shall be regarding as nonconforming uses and
shall not be re-established without new eenditional special use permit approval.

35



Amendments te Article 23

23.2 Establishment and Authority
(A.) Conflicts of interest, No staff member shall make a final administrative decision if the outcome of

that decision would have a direct, substantial, and readily identifiable financial impact on the staff
member or if the applicant or other person subject to that decision is a person with whom the staff

member has a close familial, business, or other associational relationship.

23.6-5 Stop work orders. Whenever a building, sign, or structure, or'part thereof, is being constructed,

reconstructed, altered, or repaired in violation of this Ordinance, the Planmng, Zoning, & Subdivision

Administrator may order the work to be immediately stopped. Th':: "top work order shall be in writing and

directed to the owner, occupant, or person doing the work. The stop work order shall state the specific

work to be stopped, the specific reasons for the stoppage, and the condmons under which the work may

be resumed. Such action shall be in accordance with NG—G—S—LéQW—er—Ié%A—%—LNCGS 160D-
401(b), as applicable, or the NC Building Code. & .

23.6-6 Revocation of permits. The Planning, Zoning, & Subd1v1smn Admimstrator may revoke and
require the returm of a permit by notlfymg the permit holder in ‘writing stating the reason for the
revocation. Permits shall be revoked for any s siibstanhal departure from the approved application, plans, or
specifications; for refusal or failure to comply with the _requlremcnts of any applicable State or local laws;
or for false statements or mlsreprcscntatlons made in securing the perrmt Any permit mistakenly issued
in violation of an applicable State: or local law me also be _voked (See N.C-Gen-Stat—sec—160A-422
NCGS 160D-403(f) fot: : ) ' )

36







